


Coal has a fundamental role in providing access to v

baseload electricity —power that is constantly available
— across the globe. Reliable, affordable, and stable
energy access is a key requirement for modern life,
preserved by the UN's Sustainable Development Goals.










VISION












tion

n
>




CORPORATE

~information
|“ll il lg |

e

L."

T

I ,,’r_.a" ) ¥ o "‘:‘.
’ st Il’f‘ 4
P '.j
"(’,3 ‘f:’. o r’- ;

Y

-
"D e



Registered Name

Registered Office

Certificate of Incorporation
Business Identification No. BIN
TIN Certificate

eTIN

Chairman of the BCMCL Board

Directors of the BCMCL Board

Former Chairmen of the BCMCL Board

Managing Director

Former Managing Directors

Company Secretary
Auditor

Company Website

Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited
Vill. Chowhati, P.S. Parbatipur, Dist. Dinajpur
RAJC-164/98 dated 4™ August 1998
000091322-1006
445-200-4115 dated 10*" September 2009
164266786348

Mr. Zanendra Nath Sarker

Dr. Badrul Imam

Mr. A K M Benjamin Riazi

Mr. SK Aktar Hossain

Engr. Md. Kamruzzaman Khan
Engr. Md. Shaiful Islam Sarkar

Mr. Arif Mahmud

Mr. Nazmul Ahsan

Mr. AB M Abdul Fattah

Mr. MD. Ruhul Amin

Mr. Abul Mansur Md. Faizullah, ndc
Mr. Istiaque Ahmad

Prof. Dr. Md. Hussain Monsur
Major Md. Muqtadir Ali (Retd.)

Mr. Jalal Ahmed

Mr. Sheikh Abdur Rashid

Mr. M. Musharraf Hossain Bhuiyan
Late S.R. Osmani

Mr. Syed Sajedul Karim

Prof. Dr. Md. Hussain Monsur

Mr. Md. Mosharaf Hossain

Engr. Md. Shaiful Islam Sarkar
Engr. Md. Kamruzzaman Khan

Mr. Zaved Choudhury

Mr. Md. Fazlur Rahman

Engr. Habib Uddin Ahmed

Engr. S.M.N Aurangajeb, PEng.

Mr. Md. Aminuzzaman

Engr. Md. Quamruzzaman

Engr. Khurshidul Hasan

Mr. Md. Abdul Aziz Khan

Late Mr. Md. Mahbubur Rahman
Mr. Md. Sirajul Islam Chowdhury
Late Md. Golam Mostafa

Umme Tajmeri Selina Akhter

M. ]. Abedin & Co., Chartered Accountants
National Plaza, 3 Floor
109 Bir Uttam C. R. Datta Road, Dhaka-1205

www.bcmcl.org.bd
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Engr. Md. Shaheenur Islam
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Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited
24 Annual General Meeting
Report of the Board of Directors to the Shareholders

Respected Shareholders,

| heartily welcome and felicitate you to the 24™ Annual General Meeting (AGM) on behalf of the board of
directors (BoD) of Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited (BCMCL) and on my own behalf. Along with the
directors of the board, | am both highly delighted and proud to have got an opportunity to present the audited
statement of accounts for the 2021-2022 fiscal years, auditor's report, and the annual report of various
activities of the company before you in the 24t AGM of the company.

Extracting coal from an underground mine is obviously challenging, laborious, difficult and risky than of any
other occupations. | also greet and congratulate the all concerned to the mine for their consecutive success
overcoming the hazards of roof-falling, coal bump, water inrush, spontaneous combustion of coal, excessive
underground temperature and humidity along with other technical difficulties.

A total of 4.88 lakh tonnes of coal has been extracted from the mine in the 2021-22 fiscal year and all the
extracted coal has beensold to the Barapukuria coal-based thermal power plant. As aresult, it has been possible
to deposit a total of Tk 233.76 crore in the fiscal year 2021-22 as supplementary duty, VAT and income tax at
source and royalty to the government treasury, including saving foreign currency on the import of coal. The 4t
agreement between BCMCL and The Chinese contractor XMC-CMC Consortium titled ‘CEOMAW-2021" started
on December 30, 2021. Under this agreement, roadway development and maintenance work is scheduled,
including the extraction of a total of 4.5 million tons of coal. BCMCL has been successfully continuing its coal
extraction activities from underground mines as well as properly complying with the company’s Institutional
Social Responsibility (CSR) activities. Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited has been able to earn profit
in the 2021-22 fiscal year by following the hygiene rules amid the corona situation. The net profit before tax
earned this year stood at Tk 144.47 crore. In the coming days, | seek sincere cooperation from all concerned to
operate the mine properly.

Respected shareholders,

| present to you a brief history of barapukuria coal mine and audited accounts for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2022, along with the auditor's report, as well as the overall picture of the management, marketing, financial,
development and administrative activities:

Start of Barapukuria coal mine, development during the project and progress as a company:

The Geological Survey of Bangladesh (GSB) found high-quality bituminous coal at a depth of 118-509 meters
in Barapukuria area under Parbatipur upazila of Dinajpur district in 1985. Barapukuria Coal Mining Company
Limited (BCMCL) was formed on August 4, 1998 under the Companies Act 1994, with the objective of
conducting coal extraction activities properly from the mine. Under the supply loan between Petrobangla
and China National Machinery Import and Export Corporation (CMC), the development of an underground
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mine with a capacity to extract 1.00 million tonnes of coal annually was completed in September 2005.
Since September 10, 2005, commercial coal production from the mine has been going on uninterruptedly.
production from the mine has been going on uninterruptedly. A total of 13.023 million tonnes of coal has
been extracted from the company’s inception till June-2022, including underground roadway development.
This trend of coal extraction is expected to continue in the future.

Management, Production, Maintenance and Provisioning Services (MPM&P) Agreement:

First contract named as Management, Production, Maintenance Services (M&P) of a tenure of 71 months
in 2005 was signed with CMC-XMC consortium through calling for international tenders in order to extract
coal from Barapukuria coal mine as there had been no sufficient manpower with technical knowledge in our
country and a second contract named as Management, Production, Maintenance and Provisioning services
(MPM&P) of a tenure of 72 months effective from 11 August 2011 were signed with CMC-XMC Consortium.
The third agreement titled Management, Production, Maintenance and Provisioning Services (MPM&P) was
signed for a period of 48 months (52 and a half months with an extended period) with effect from August 11,
2017. A total of 12.50 million tonnes of coal was extracted from the three contracts mentioned.

Activities of the MPM&P-2017 Agreement (3 Agreement):

The 39 MPM&P-2017 agreement for 48 months duration was signed on 8 July 2017 with the XMC-CMC
Consortium with an aim to extract 3.205 million tonnes of coal effective from 11 August 2017 to maintain the
continuity of coal extraction, which was effective till 10 August 2021. In view of the continuous disruption
in the supply of imported goods due to the global epidemic corona infection, in view of the shortage of local
workers, the request of the contractor company XMC-CMC Consortium and in the light of the approval of the
BCMCL Board, through the 3™ and 4™ amendments, an additional 1.5 lakh tons of coal will be extracted till
December 31, 2021. Total 3.346 million tonnes of coal extraction against the revised extraction target of
3.355 million tonnes during the extended contract period, along with other activities as per the scope of work
of the contract For example, under the Capital Investment Equipment, installation of three generators with
a capacity of 3.38 MW, construction of two pump houses with water sumps at the level of -430 meters and
-470 meters of the ground floor, construction of four pipe shafts, construction of water treatment plants, etc.
have been completed. Coal extraction activities under the 3 Agreement ended on 29 December 2021 as the
activities of the 4t Agreement began on 30 December 2021.

At present, in order to complete the closing activities of the agreement, the activities of inspection
and rectification, including the testing and commissioning of the establishments related to the Capital
Investment Equipment Item, are being carried out in coordination with the Closure Committee of BCMCL, the
electro-mechanical experts of the consulting firm DMT and the concerned officials of the contractor company
XMC-CMC Consortium.

The year-wise coal extraction targets as per the third contract and the total amount of coal extracted by the
contractor XMC-CMC consortium are as follows:

. . : Extraction Goal : Actual Extraction : Percentage of
Extraction Timeline : : : :
: (tons) : (tons) : goals achieved
11 August 2017 - 10 August 2018 8,19,000.00 7,74,496.69 94.60%
11 August 2018 - 10 August 2019 7,18,000.00 9,42,723.16 131.30%
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. . : Extraction Goal : Actual Extraction : Percentage of

Extraction Timeline : : : ;
: (tons) : (tons) : goals achieved

11 August 2019 - 10 August 2020 7,90,000.00 6.60,293.40 83.58%
11 August 2020 - 10 August 2021 8,78,000.00 8,20,476.86 93.45%
11 August 2021 - 29 December 1,50,000.00 1,48,550.26 99.03%
2021 (with extended time)
Total Extraction 33,55,000.00 33,46,540.19 99.75%

Overall activities of the ongoing 4" Agreement (BCMCL/CEOMAW-2021)

With the aim of extracting 4.50 million tonnes of coal from Barapukuria coal mine for the next 6 (six) years
from December 30, 2021 to December 29, 2027 a worth of 262,566,887.89 (twenty-six crore twenty-five
lakh sixty-six thousand eight hundred eighty-eight nine) US dollars in foreign currency and The 4t agreement
titled “Construction of Underground Roadways, Coal Extraction, Operation, Maintenance and Other Associated
Works of Barapukuria Coal Mine, Barapukuria, Dinajpur, Bangladesh (BCMCL/CEOMAW-2021)" worth Tk
1049,48,78,082.13 (one thousand fifty-nine crore forty-eight lakh eight thousand eighty-two. one three)
in local currency was signed on December 30, 2021. Under the agreement, the overall activities of the mine,
including the development of mines, coal extraction and maintenance, are going on.

The significant responsibilities of the contractor as per the contract are as follows:

» 4.5 million tonnes of coal will be extracted in six (six) years from 30 December 2021 to 29 December
2027 (1.3 million tonnes from the Central Part in the first two years and 3.2 million tonnes from the
Northern Part in the next four years);

» Supply of one set of LTCC equipment (Longwall Top Coal Caving Equipment);

» construction of a 5,800-meter roadway underground (4,700 m rock roadway, 1,100 m coal roadway)
aimed at extracting coal from the northern part of the mine;

» 2setsof Rock Road-Header and 2 sets of Coal Road-Header supply;
» Supply of essential goods and spare parts related to production;
» Mining of 6 hydrogeological boreholes to extract coal from the northern part of the mine.

Also, under this Agreement, for the project titled “Service Contract for Appointment of Pre-Shipment
Inspection (PSI) Agent of Barapukuria Coal Mine, Dinajpur, Bangladesh” to verify the quality and quantity of
imported goods in spares, consumers and materials, capital equipment and capital investment equipment
sectors a Contract has been signed on last 27 February 2022 between NMCI Group, NMCI (Bangladesh) Ltd.
Hometown Complex, Level-12, 87 New Eskaton Road, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh for and on behalf of National
Marine Consultant Inc.(NMCI), 236 Ernston Road, Parline, NJ 08859, USA and BCMCL in order to appointing
Pre-Shipment Inspection (PSI). Under this agreement, PSI continues to operate.

Extraction of coal from the first, second and third slices:

A total of 4.167 million tonnes of coal was extracted from the first slice of the central part of Barapukuria Coal
Mining Company Limited and a total of 5.997 million tonnes from the second slice. A total of 2.859 million
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tonnes (4.167+5.997+2.859)=13.023 million tonnes of coal has been extracted from the third slice of the
central part of the mine till June-2022. Coal extraction from 1314, 1308, 1312, 1307 and 1310 faces has
already been completed from the third slice and coal extraction from 1306 face continues. On the other hand,
the development work of Face 1113 after 1306 continues. For the sake of security, coal is being extracted on
a limited scale from the face of the third slice in the LTCC system.

Marketing Management

A total of 4.88 lakh tonnes of coal has been extracted from the mines against the target of 6.5 lakh tonnes in
2021-2022 fiscal year. All the coal has been sold and supplied to PDB except for 750.00 tonnes of inland coal
usage. A total of 1,28,58,372.250 tonnes of coal has been sold, including 95,39,040.948 tonnes to PDB till
June 30, 2022 and 3,319,331.302 tonnes to other buyers as on March 18, 2018.

The following are the coal extraction, marketing and utilization information for the last five years including
the financial year 2021-2022:

Tonne

: Sale to local

Duration (fiscal : buyers, including Use of BCMCL's

Total extraction Sale to PDB

year) : the XMC-CMC : boilers

: : : consortium
2017-2018 9,23,276.08 7,87,103.050 2,73,287.00 857.79
2018-2019 8,05,695.62 8,28,736.770 20.00 874.19
2019-2020 8,11,137.12 8,07,180.740 20.00 1,048.20
2020-2021 7,53,972.83 7,53,362.850 10.00 599.98
2021-2022 4,88,676.046 4,87,926.046 - 750.00

¢ During the sale of coal in the month of November-December 2019, sales and extraction of 813.51 tonnes
of coal were shown to be high due to fault of scale. BPDB has paid less bills in the 2021-22 fiscal year.
Therefore, in the 2021-2022 fiscal year, 813.51 tons have been adjusted from the production bill of the
XMC-CMC consortium. In this case, the actual coal extraction and sales will be 813.51 tons less in the 2019-
2020 fiscal year.

Sale price of coal to PDB and other local buyers

As of December 2021, every ton of coal has been sold to PDB at a price of USS 130 excluding VAT and from
January 1, 2022, the newly fixed price per ton of coal has been sold as US $ 176 without VAT. On the other
hand, the sale price of coal to the local buyers is fixed according to the decision of the Board of Directors in
line with the international market. Itis to be noted that the sale of coal to local buyers has been stopped since
March 19, 2018. In the financial year 2021-2022, pdb earned revenue of Tk 653,03,26,333.00 (excluding
VAT) from the sale of 4,87,926.046 tons of coal. Besides, 750.00 tons of coal has been used in the internal
operations (own boilers) of BCMCL.
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Sedimented Coal Sales

In the financial year 2021-2022, a total of 3,800 tons of sedied coal was sold at the rate of Tk 14,348.00 per
tonne of coal received through open tender in terms of approval by the BCMCL board and the total revenue
earned from this sale was Tk 5,45,22,400.00 (excluding VAT).

Sale of mud-soil mixed stones extracted from the mine

During underground roadway development, low-quality stones mixed with raised mud and soil are deposited
in the rock yard of BCMCL.BCMCL signed an agreement with M/s Amin Traders, Phulbari, Dinajpur on 15 January
2019 to supply 80,000.00 tons of low quality stones. From its inception till June 2022, 62,215.440 tons of
substandard stones have been sold in favour of M/s Amin Traders. In the 2021-2022 fiscal year, 20,888.750
tons of stones were sold and revenue of Tk 87,94,164.00 (excluding VAT) was earned from this sale.

Respected Shareholders,

For your information, i am presenting a brief description of the company’s income and expenses for the
financial year 2021-22:

Financial activities and management of the company

The proceeds from the sale of coal are the company's main source of revenue. In 2021-22 fiscal year, the
company earned a revenue of Tk 653.03 crore against the total sale of 4.88 lakh tonnes of coal to the Power
Development Board (PDB). Besides, the income in other sectors including interest on deposits has been Tk
83.87 crore. As a result, the company's total income in the current financial year was Tk 736.90 crore. The
company'’s pre-tax net profit was Tk 144.47 crore in the fiscal year under consideration, excluding Tk 592.43
crore for operating and other expenses of the company. All liabilities are being paid on time by the company’s
revenue income. All information related to the financial activities of the company has been included in the
audited statement of accounts.

The comparative statement of income and expenditure of the financial year 2020-21 with the financial year
2021-22 is given below:
(Figuresin Crores)

ial : : Fiscal year
;Tal : Dscription 2021-2022 . 2020-2021
1 Revenue income 653.03 831.99
2. Operating and administrative expenses 570.17 64314
3. Operational gain 82.86 188.85
4, Financial and other expenses 22.26 13.88
5. Financial and other income 83.87 78.75
6. Profit before tax 144.47 253.72
7. Profit after tax 116.87 217.79
8. Income per share 2.98 6.90
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Payment to the government treasury

The year-wise picture of the deposited supplementary duty, VAT, income tax at source/ corporate tax, royalty
and DSL in the government treasury by the company for the last 05 (five) years, including the financial year

2021-22, is given below: .
(Numbers: in crores)

Duration EBS\:QL/duty VAT (coal sell) ;ﬁlrs !rr:ic)?me Royalty DSL Total

2017-2018 22.00 14.44 1948 144.94 99.74 - 300.60
2018-2019 69.46 9.32 23.37 59.22 50.64 - 212.01
2019-2020 28.36 48.37 45,06 71.65 62.30 100.00 355.74
2020-2021 22.18 3494 21.51 47.70 95.75 - 222.08
2021-2022 5.36 42.02 36.02 75.25 7511 - 233.76
Total 147.36 149.09 145.44 398.76 383.54 100.00 1,324.19

The company’s environment and safety measures

A police investigation center has been set up by renting a house with company funding near the mine for
the smooth operation of the overall security activities of Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited (BCMCL),
where a total of 18 policemen, including 2 ASIs and 15 constables, are deployed under O1 police inspector.
A camp comprising 70 Ansar members (including PC/APC) has been set up in the mine area. A total of 50
security personnel, including 46 security personnel and four supervisors, are deployed at BCMCL through
third parties in the mining area. Besides, a temporary police camp comprising 20 Armed Police Battalion
(APBN) (01 SI, 01 ASI, Naik and Constable) has been set up in the mine area. At present, a monitoring room is
being set up with 132 CC cameras and monitoring the mine area is being done for 24 hours. For the sake of
security, a vigilant eye is being kept around from 04 high-rise watch towers. Hand metal detectors are being
used to search the bodies while entering the mining area and search mirrors are being used for searching
vehicles. Vehicles that enter the industrial area for official purposes are being searched by search mirrors
and archways are being used for manpower. Public access is reserved except for authorized persons of
the company and members of law enforcement agencies. Considering the special requirement, the pass
procedure and list for outsiders are being recorded in the register with the approval of the authority. There is
a system of approved gatepass for taking goods out. Access to industrial areas is prohibited without identity
cards. All the officers and employees of the company have been instructed to display the identity card all
the time during the office hours. Fire extinguishers, sand buckets, water buckets, water hosepipes, etc. are
being installed in various installations and the overall security system is being monitored round the clock.
For the patrolling of the security guards, roads have been constructed through the boundary wall along the
boundary wall of industrial areas, all residential areas and explosive houses, and in order to strengthen night
security, all the important installations of the company, including the Explosive House, M&P Building, such as
main shaft, auxiliary shaft, coal yard, fan house, pump house, pump station and boundary wall.

Underground security measures

Various effective measures are being taken by the XMC-CMC consortium to ensure the safety of the earth, of
which the notable measures are as follows:
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» Regular air flow, temperature, relative humidity, etc. are being measured at longwall face, development
face, seal wall, gof area, return air roadway, roof cavity and other necessary places in the underground;

> Measures are being taken accordingly to determine the presence and quantity of harmful gases such as
methane, carbon dioxide, carbon monoxide and other hydrocarbons in different places and collect and
analyze regular gas samples;

» Various seal walls are being regularly monitored and gas monitoring on the inside to ensure the safety
of the earth’s crust;

» Cavities and fractures of longwall face or various roadways and drill holes are kept under control of
harmful gases by injecting mud/fly ash grouting, water, nitrogen and necessary chemicals in the field,
and the stress or roof/sidewall pressure of other roadways, including longwall face, is being monitored
through electromagnetic emission detectors;

» The overall safety measures are being monitored round-the-clock by installing fire extinguishers,
sand buckets, water buckets, water hydrant points, hydrant boxes, autospinkers, etc. in the
company'’s ground floor;

» BCMCL has a medical unit with the required number of physicians under its own management within
the company. The officers/employees working in the mine are regularly examined for their professional
health and provided with necessary medical certificates. In addition, arrangements are being made to
send the workers/employees/officers involved in major accidents to the neighboring divisional cities
using the company's ambulance to provide better treatment immediately.

Mining liquid waste and air quality

The water drained from the mine is being treated through a water treatment plant. To ensure tolerable levels
of harmful substances in this water, the air quality (SPM, SO2 and NOX) is tested every three months along
with the pH, DO, BOD, COD, TDS, Oil & Grease and EC of the liquid waste emitted from the mining area of
Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited. A delegation of the Department of Environment collected samples
from the mine area and tested the liquid waste and air quality of the mine and provided the results. The
quality of mining liquid waste and air emitted from the mining area is within acceptable limits.

Subsidence Monitoring

The amount of subsidy in barapukuria coal mining area is measured every ten days jointly by BCMCL and
XMC-CMC consortium. Due to the extraction of coal from 1310 face in the current financial year, the amount
of subsidy has increased by about 2.631 meters and the maximum subsidence of barapukuria coal basin is
about 9.5 meters.

Activities related to Underground Geology and Hydrogeology

> Forthesake of uninterrupted coal extraction from barapukuria coal mine, water table readings have been
taken from various piezometric monitoring boreholes existingonthe surface, including the underground,
geological and geoaerial conditions of the mine, as well as materiological (e.g. temperature, humidity
and rainfall etc.) readings of the surface in the coal mine and surrounding areas.

» Theunderground water flow of the mine has been measured 03 (three) times a month with the Chinese
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consortium. The amount of water removed from the groundwater for the financial year 2021-2022 is an
average of 2,321.00 cubic meters/hour.

> Monthly report is prepared on the basis of piezometric monitoring boreholes, materiological readings
and measurements of underground water inflow of mining, data collected from underground, data
collected from dmt consultants and consortium reports for fy 2021-2022.

» Safety, maintenance and overall supervision of various pizometric monitoring boreholes existing in
barapukuria coalmine and surrounding areas are underway.

» The construction of the modern core house has been completed for the preservation and management
of about 5,700.00 (five thousand seven hundred) core boxes received from the Dighipara Feasibility
Study Project, including the cores received at different times during the feasibility study, development
and production of barapukuria coal mine and the north-south part expansion project of the said basin. Of
these, about 3,000.00 (three thousand) coreboxes have been shifted to the newly constructed modern
core house of BCMCL. In the future, the overall management activities of the coreboxes are going on
with the aim of carrying out various research activities including the development and production of
coal mines in the country and properly preserving the valuable core samples as geological evidences.

Manpower and Human Resource Development

Against 310 permanent officers and 119 permanent staff established in the approved organogram of
Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited (BCMCL), the number of permanent (including deputation) officers
are 163 and the number of permanent staff are 26, working in BCMCL as on 30 June 2022. In addition, there
is one contractual (part-time) doctor working in the company to provide medical services to the manpower
and their families.

On December 17, 2020, 52 officers joined the company, of which six resigned from service. Later, 11 new
officers have been appointed in the month of October, 2021 from the waiting list prepared by the Senior
Selection Committee regarding the recruitment of manpower in BCMCL. Although the initiative was taken to
recruit employees in the recruitment process, it was not possible to take up the recruitment process due to
the casein the court.

Barapukuria coal mine is the country’s first and only productive coal mine. As a result, priority is being given
to training to increase the technical knowledge and skills of the manpower in this mine. In continuation of
the previous year, the training program of technical, general/administration and finance cadre officers and
employees was continued to increase technical and professional skills in the financial year 2021-2022. In this
fiscal year, 104 officers and 5 employees working in the company have been given in-person/online training
in various training institutions within the country. However, due to the global pandemic caused by Covid-19,
it was not possible to send any of the company’s officials for foreign training in the 2021-2022 financial year.

Construction of various physical infrastructures

(1) Construction of new stone yard: The construction work titled “Construction of new stone yard at the
East side of boundary wall of BCMCL' started on February 06, 2022 and was completed on August 24,
2022, with an extended time. The built stone has an area of about 20,000 square meters and a capacity
of about 150,000 tons of debris stone.
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(2) Construction of new building of Barapukuria Coal Mine School: The construction work titled
“Construction of 3-Storied School Building with 4-Storied Foundation as well as Connecting road, Gate
repair, Internal Sanitary and Water Supply and Electrification works of BCMCL" was completed in march
2022. At present, the school's reqular activities are being conducted in the building.

(3) Road renovation: The Chauhati-Dhulaudal road (about 3 km) would become unfit for muddy movement
during the rainy season. The road was made motorable with mining waste stone dust. The road is currently
being used by the general public.

Health and Medical Care

Measures have been taken to make the hospital built in the mine area fully operational to ensure the health
and medical system of the manpower working in the mine. There are 01 (one) doctors employed on contract
basis in the company. In addition, 01 attendant is employed through a third party. Measures have been taken
to make the hospital built in the mine area fully operational to ensure the health and medical system of the
manpower working in the mine. There are 01 (one) doctors employed on contract basis in the company.
In addition, O1 attendant is employed through a third party. On the other hand, if the Chinese manpower
working under the Chinese contractor company XMC-CMC Consortium and a local worker is a victim of a
sudden accident in the mine, first aid is provided by two Chinese doctors and one Chinese nurse stayingin the
mine area and if necessary, arrangements are made to send them to Rangpur / Dhaka for better treatment.

Covid-19 Management

Covid testing and corona control measures of Chinese manpower and local workers stationed in the mines are
continuing as per routine to control the spread of covid-19 infection. All the local workers working in the mine
have been ensured accommodation in the mining area and they are engaged in work following proper Covid
protocols. In order to control the corona at different times, the local workers had to be stopped from work
and kept in home quarantine, so the mining and development activities had to be suspended for a temporary
period in a few steps. A 41-room quarantine/isolation center has been constructed by BCMCL to control
corona and engage local workers in the work as per the advice of the Ministry of Power, Energy and Mineral
Resources for uninterrupted coal extraction. Besides, BCMCL has to face a great challenge in employing local
workers after proper Covid testing and quarantine by following the hygiene rules. Mining activities were
kept normal by completing covid test and quarantine and deploying local workers with negative results in
faces. Due to the overall situation of the underground and the technical environment, in the corona situation,
about 7.51 lakh tonnes of coal has been extracted against the target of producing 4.20 lakh tonnes of coal
from 1310 face following the health rules, that is, about 79 percent more than the target. At present, coal
extraction from 1306 face continues.

National Program

Historic ‘7t March National Day 2022’ observed

The historic 7t March National Day 2022 program was started with the hoisting of the national flag at the
company. After hoisting the national flag, tributes were paid by placing wreaths at the portrait of Father
of the Nation Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujibur Rahman installed at the company in the presence of officials
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and employees of all levels of the company. On the occasion of the historic ‘7t March National Day 2022’
the students of Barapukuria Coal Mine School and the children of the officers and employees of BCMCL,
bangabandhu's speech competition, rhyme recitation, poetry recitation and prizes were distributed among
the winners. Besides, on the occasion of the National Day on March 7, 2022, the important installations
including the industrial area, residential area and staff dormitory of BCMCL were provided spectacular
illumination from March 06-08, 2022.

Father of the Nation’s Birthday and National Children’s Day 2022 observed

Ontheoccasionofthebirthday of the Fatherofthe Nation, the national flagwashoistedat6.11am (immediately
after sunrise) on March 17, 2022 and tributes were paid to The Father of the Nation Bangabandhu Sheikh
Mujibur Rahman by placing wreaths at his portrait at 06.20 am in the presence of officials and employees
of all levels of BCMCL. A special munajat was held at the Jame Mosque of BCMCL in Ba'd Johor and after the
doa mabhfil, sweets were distributed among the officers/ employees of all levels of BCMCL and Bangladeshi
workers engaged through XMC-CMC Consortium, Ansar, APBN and security personnel engaged in the security
of the mine. Composition writing and drawing competition were organized by the students of Barapukuria
Coal Mine School and the children of the officers and employees of BCMCL and prizes were distributed among
the winners. On the occasion of “Birthday” and “National Children’s Day” of the Father of the Nation, two sides
of the road from the main gate to the industrial gate of BCMCL, two office buildings, mosque buildings, guest
buildings “Paribartan”, Officers’ Club “"Monmela”, residential areas and staff dormitories were arranged from
March 16-18, 2022.

Celebration of other national days

National days such as the Great Victory Day, International Mother Language and Martyrs' Day have been
celebrated with due respect and enthusiasm in the presence of officers and employees of all levels of BCMCL.
Besides, on the occasion of the Great Independence Day, two sides of the road from the main gate to the
industrial gate of BCMCL, two office buildings, mosque buildings, guest building "Parivartan”, Officers’ Club
“Monmela”, residential area and staff dormitory area were provided with spectacular illumination from March
25 to March 27, 2022.

Welfare and Entertainment

In order to enhance cordial relations,
brotherhood and sympathy between the
officers and employees of the company, the
annual sports competition and picnic has been
organized in the financial year 2021-2022. In
addition, 02 employees of the company have
been given a loan of about Tk 43 lakh 41
thousand for the construction of houses /land
purchase / flat purchase / development (house
/land/ flat) loan in the current financial year.
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Visit of the mines of
the guests of honor

(@) Mr. Nazmul Ahsan,
Chairman of Bangladesh Qil,
Gas and Mineral Resources
Corporation  (Petrobangla)
and Chairman of the Board
of Directors of BCMCL
arrived at Barapukuria Coal
Mining Company Limited on
March 27, 2022. During the
visit, he exchanged views
on the overall situation of
the company with the senior
officials of the company. At
the meeting, the Chairman
was briefed about the
overall activities of BCMCL
- through a power point
presentation and after the presentation, the Chairman visited various coal mining installations and important
installations of the company including coal yards. Besides, he released fish seedlings in the water bodies of
the subsidence area.

(b) Mr. Abul Khair Md. Aminur Rahman, Director General (Additional Secretary) of Hydrocarbon Unit, along
with his entourage, arrived at BCMCL on June 10, 2022. During the visit, the guests participated in a view
exchange meeting with the senior officials of the company on the overall affairs of BCMCL.

(c) Honorable Joint Secretary (Planning) of the Energy and Mineral Resources Division Dr. Rafiqul Islam and
Deputy Secretary Mr. Md. Hasanuzzaman visited BCMCL on March 29, 2022. The Joint Secretary and
Deputy Secretary exchanged views with the company officials on the operational activities of the mine
and the future action plan of the mine.

(d) Colonel Mohammad Saiful Islam Bhuiyan, head of DGFI of Rangpur Zone, along with his entourage, visited
BCMCL on December 8, 2021, to monitor the overall situation, including the security of barapukuria coal
mine. He was briefed about the overall security of BCMCL and the activities of the company.

(e) Dr. Khan Md. Moniruzzaman (Deputy Secretary), Director, Implementation Monitoring and Evaluation
Division (IMED), Ministry of Planning visited BCMCL on December 05, 2021 to inspect the “Feasibility
Study for Development of Dighipara Coal Field at Dighipara, Dinajpur” project implemented by BCMCL. The
visiting guests visited the Dighipara project site and visited various installations of BCMCL.

The Company’s Institutional Social Responsibility (CSR) activities

The company’s Institutional Social Responsibility (CSR) activities have been further strengthened in the
current fiscal year. In the fiscal year 2021-2022, financial grants have been provided to the following sectors:
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(a) Financial grant from the CSR fund of the company for the financial year 2021-2022, a total of Tk
19,15,000.00 (nineteen lakh fifteen thousand) including Tk 10,15,000.00 to 20 institutions (schools,
colleges, universities, madrasas, mosques, temples and other institutions) and a total of Tk 9,00,000.00
to 06 persons to meet medical expenses;

(b) A total of Tk 84,50,000.00 (eighty-four lakh fifty thousand) financial assistance has been provided
to bangladeshi miners working under XMC-CMC consortium at different times and food assistance to
Bangladeshi workers undergoing COVID-19 sample testing and quarantine; In addition, for the sake of the
company's work, a total of Tk. 15,00,000.00 (fifteen lakh) will be given to 250 outsourcing manpower
who are working inside the mining area during the corona period, a total of Tk. 15,00,000.00 (fifteen
lakh) for 6 months;

(c) Bangladeshi miners working in the mines employed under the MPM&P contractor XMC-CMC Consortium of
BCMCL and their sub-contractor |SME; To provide a total of Tk 1,04,80,000.00 (one crore four lakh eighty
thousand) as a one-time annual grant of Tk 8,000.00 per person for improving the quality of life to a total
of 1,310 people, including the families of enlisted crippled workers and the deceased workers and the
manpower engaged in service in the company through outsourcing;

(d) For the sake of the work of Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited, a total of 248 outsourcing
manpower, including those who are working inside the mining area during the corona period and working
in the Liaison Office in Dhaka, have been given Tk 31,36,000.00 (thirty-one lakh thirty-six thousand) at
different times; Inaddition, if a chowkidar (security) employed through outsourcing dies while on the job, a
total of Tk 3,20,000.00 (three lakh twenty thousand) will be given from the company’s CSR fund, including
Tk 3,00,000.00 (three lakh twenty thousand) to the family of the deceased for his burial and burial;

(e) A school has been established with the own funding of BCMCL to spread the light of quality education
among the people of Barapukuria coal mine area. The current number of students of Barapukuria Coal
Mine School is 663. The children of all levels of the company, including the locals around the school, and
the children of the workers working in the mine are studying in this school. The children of the mine
workers are given the facility to study at a partial salary. Besides, the children of injured, killed and crippled
workers while working in the mine have the opportunity to study completely free of pay in this school.
It is not possible to meet the entire expenses of the school from the ancillary income of the students
such as admission, salary, etc. Financial grant of Tk. 66,66,457.00/- (sixty-six lakh sixty-six thousand four
hundred and fifty-seven) for 09 (nine) months’ salary allowance of the headmaster, assistant teacher
and employee of Barapukuria Coal Mine School and 03 teachers of the Hindu community for the festival
allowance of Durga Puja; and

(f) During the 4t agreement of 72 months duration, the institutional social responsibility (CSR) of the
company is being provided to the Bangladeshi workers employed / enlisted under the Chinese contractor
company and the manpower engaged in providing services in the outsourcing process in BCMCL as monthly
consumption allowance / financial assistance of Tk. 1,500.00 (one thousand five hundred) per month.

Besides, financial assistance of Tk 3,000/- per month is being provided to the families of the local workers
who were injured in an accident while working under a Chinese contractor in the Barapukuria coal mine and
Tk 4,000/- per month to the families of the deceased workers.
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School management by company

Barapukuria Coal Mine School was started on
January 10, 2008 under the direction of the
company. At that time, there were a total of
96 students from 6 classes from play-group
to fourth grade. At present, the total number
of students in 12 classes from play to 10t
grade in the school is about 663. According
to the decision of the board of directors
of the company, the remaining deficit of
Tk 66,66,457.00 (sixty-six lakh sixty-six
thousand four hundred fifty-seven) has
been provided for the management of the
school fromthe CSR fund of the financial year
2021-2022 by adjusting the annual income
for the admission, salary, etc. of the school
students. The school has all the facilities to
provide modern and advanced education.
And for this, the organization continues to bear the signature of unique characteristics in the overall matter,
including achieving good results. Since the establishment of Barapukuria Coal Mine School, it has been
playing a special role in spreading the light of education in the area through the efficient management of
the school management committee consisting of company officials, teacher representatives and guardian
representatives. The school has always been performing very well in various class-based public examinations
sinceitsinception. In continuation of that, he was able to achieve significant results in the SSC examination of
2021. SSC Exam Result 2021 is as follows:

Exam : Numberof: *  Government
Year : : Result : Passrate : .

name : students : : :  scholarship
2021 SSC 53 ‘A+'41 students and ‘A’ 12 students 100% General grade-04

The children of all levels of the company, including the surrounding locals, and the children of the workers
working in the mine are studying in Barapukuria Coal Mine School. The children of the mine workers are given
the facility to study on a partial salary. Besides, the children of injured, killed and crippled workers while
working in the mine have the opportunity to study completely free of pay in this school.

The company’s notable achievements in fy 2021-22 are

» To engage local workers and continue to extract coal by controlling covid infection through proper
COVID-19 management.

» Extraction of 7.51 lakh tonnes of coal against the target of lifting 4.20 lakh tonnes of coal from face no.
1310 of the earth’s surface during the COVID-19 period.

» Toassistin uninterrupted power generation by supplying coal reqularly to PDBs.

» Completion of 1,953.40-metre roadway development work underground by importing foreign goods
even amid covid situation.
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> The 4" Agreement (CEOMAW-2021) will begin operations from December 30, 2021, after the expiry of
the 3 MPM&P Agreement-2017.

Challange

Extracting coal from the underground in an environmentally friendly manner is extremely laborious, difficult,
risky and challenging. Coal extraction is constantly facing challenges due to other technical difficulties
including roof fall, coal bump, water inrush, spontaneous burning of coal, high temperature and humidity of
the ground. In addition, new challenges related to the prevention of coronavirus infection have been added
to it. Some of the notable challenges are mentioned below:

> Hygiene rules imposed by the consortium for the purpose of employing local workers under the
consortium during the global pandemic corona, completing covid testing according to the demand and
completing the quarantine properly engaged in the work;

> Local worker management employed under a consortium working in the mine;

> Coaliscurrently being extracted from the third slice of the Central Partin the underground of the mine. In
terms of safety, the extraction of coal from the third slice is extremely risky, which is being continuously
required action to mitigate;

> Due to the extraction of coal in the LTCC (Longwall Top Coal Caving) method, the amount of water
released from the ground is constantly increasing, which is a challenge for Barapukuria coal mining to
ensure proper management. Two new pump houses are being constructed with two water sumps at
the level of -430 m and -470 min the ground to increase the pumping capacity of the groundwater to a
maximum of 6,829 cubic meters /h for lifting groundwater to the surface. It is to be noted that water is
currently being drained from the ground at an average rate of 2,255 cubic meters per hour.

» Under the 4™ Agreement, in the interest of uninterrupted coal extraction from the northern part
adjacent to the central part of the Barapukuria Coal Basin, about 5,800 meters (4,700 meters of rock
roadway and 1,100 meters of coal roadway) will have to be developed towards the northern part to
enter the northern part, which is a major challenge.

» Completing the process of procuring/importing explosives is a significant challenge for the construction
of a 4,700-metre rock roadway in the northern part of the mine. If it is not possible to complete the
construction work of the scheduled rock roadway in time, coal extraction activities from the northern
part of the mine will be disrupted and there is a risk of creating a production gap.

> Asperthe current extraction plan, for the sake of extracting 3.2 million tonnes of coal from the northern
part of the coal basin, an additional about 300 acres of land will have to be leased/acquired towards the
northern part of the mine which is an administrative and financial challenge for the company;

Since the Barapukuria coal mine is the only underground mine in the country, the possibility of unintended
risk cannot be ruled out in any way. BCMCL authorities are always aware of this.

Future plans

The future coal extraction studies, coalfield development and other planned projects undertaken Barapukuria
Coal Mining Company Limited (BCMCL) are as follows:
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Study projects related to coalfield development

S| Project Name Duration Comment

1 Techno-Economic Feasibility Study 3years According to the directives of the Energy
for Open Pit Coal Mines in Northern and Mineral Resources Department, the
and Southern Part of Barapukuria work of restructuring the project proposal
Coal Basin, Parbatipur, Dinajpur, is currently underway at the BCMCL end. If
Bangladesh. the project is approved, it will be possible

to examine the feasibility of constructing
an open-system mine to extract about 6
million metric tons of coal annually.

2. Preliminary Study for Development 2 years After examining the feasibility of
of Mines at Jamalganj Coal Field in the extracting 3 million tons of coal annually,
District of Joypurhat and Naogaon, it is possible to operate a 1200 MW power
Bangladesh. generation plant with that coal if the mine

is developed.

3. Techno-Economic Feasibility Study 4 years Feasibility study of extracting 2 million
for Development of Khalasipi tonnes of coal annually.

Coalfield, Khalaspir, Pirganj, Rangpur,
Bangladesh.
Coal Mine Development Project

2'0 Project Name Duration Comment

1 Development of Dighipara Coal 6-8years The review activities of the Dighipara coalfield
Field at Dighipara, Dinajpur, have been completed with DMT Consulting Firm
Bangladesh. Limited, a consulting firm working in BCMCL.

According to the information received, if it is
possible to develop the Dighipara coalfield, coal
can be extracted for about 30 years at the rate of
about 3 million tons per annum and the mine can
become a profitable institution.

Activities of the Iron Ore Field

According to the directives of the Department of Energy and Mineral Resources and Petrobangla, with the
approval of the board of directors of the company, EOl and RFP were convened to appoint a consulting firm
to conduct the preliminary study of the Alihat iron ore field. Securing the first position after verifying by
the consulting firms received through EOI and RFP, DMT Consulting Limited; United Kingdom was elected.
Subsequently, according to the decision of the 339" meeting of the Board held on 21 June 2022, the
notification of award (NOA) was awarded to the selected organization DMT Consulting Limited on 29 June
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2022 and it was decided to conclude the agreement between Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited and
DMT Consulting Limited to carry out the activities of the project titled "Preliminary Study for Development of
Alihat Iron Ore Deposit at Hakimpur, Dinajpur, Bangladesh”.

Installation of floating solar power plants in land degradation areas

Due to the extraction of coal by underground methods, the land in the mining area was degraded, creating
two lakes of 109 and 95 acres (depth 8.0 and 4.5 meters respectively). In order to determine the utility
of setting up floating solar power plants in these lakes, a feasibility study was carried out by SREDA in
collaboration with ADB, where it is possible to set up a floating solar power plant with a capacity of 45.9 MW.
The decision of the 335" board meeting of the company held on April 07, 2022 on the establishment of a
floating solar power plant in the water body (lake) caused by the ground degradation in the mining area of
Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited (BCMCL) was sent to the Energy and Mineral Resources Department
through Petrobangla for approval. When the Energy and Mineral Resources Division sent a summary of the
establishment of the floating solar power plant to the Honorable Prime Minister’s Office for in-principle
approval, instructions were given to send a proposal with information about who/who will buy the electricity
produced by it and the clear opinion of the Power Department. A letter was sent to the Power Division on June
23, 2022 from the Department of Energy and Mineral Resources requesting to give this opinion. In the wake
of the letter, the PDB sent their opinion to the Power Division on June 30, 2022, when asked for its opinion
from the Power Division.

Respected Shareholders

Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited is the sole coal mine of this country in production. Mainly, the
company has been supplying environment-friendly coal as an alternate source of fuel in the northern region
of the country. | am hopeful that the company will be able to play a more significant role in national economy
in future if underground mining system is adopted to enhance coal production from the extended Northern
and Southern part of the mine.

It is owing to the hard work, sincerity, efficiency and attentiveness of the employees and officers of all ranks
that BCMCL has succeeded in maintaining the trend of production despite various impediments in the fiscal
year. For this, | heartily felicitate the employees and officers of all ranks in the company on behalf of the BoD.
| also express my condolences, on behalf of the BoD, to the family members of those who died while on duty
in the mine and pray for the salvation of their departed souls. | also express my sympathies to those who
sustained injuries while working in the mine. For taking sincere interest in the development works of BCMCL,
rendering cooperation and providing advice and direction in adverse situations of various types, | convey my
heart-felt thanks, on behalf of the board of directors to Petrobangla, Energy and Mineral Resources Division,
Planning Commission, Implementation Monitoring and Evaluation Division, Economic Relations Division,
National Board of Revenue, Bureau of Mineral Development (BMD), GSB, other companies under Petrobangla,
Bangladesh Bank, Chittagong Port Authority, various commercial and private banks, Bangladesh Army,
Dinajpur district administration, district police administration, National Institute of Laboratory Medicine and
Referral Centre(NILMRC), Dhaka, Civil sergeon, Dinajpur, Parbatipur upazila administration, upazila police
administration, Upazila Health Complex and other government agencies.
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Respected shareholders,

| express my thanks and gratitude to you for patiently hearing the report placed in today’'s Annual General
Meeting.lam now putting forward the auditor's reportand directors' reportincluding the statement of audited
accounts of 2021-2022 fiscal year to the respected shareholders for their kind consideration and acceptance.

At the end, | pray to the Almighty seeking His all-out support for further progress, success and enrichment of
Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited.

May Bangladesh live forever.

(Zanendra Nath Sarker)
Chairman, BCMCL Board
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of cash flow and statement of changes in
equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the, the
financial position of the company as at 30 June 2022 and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994 and other applicable laws regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all
of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors'
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report the fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements and Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
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the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, we
also report the following:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;
b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company as
it appeared from our examination of those books;
c) the statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account; and
d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company's business for the year.
M. ]. ABEDIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Reg. No.- N/A
Kamrul Abedin FCA, Partner
Dated, Dhaka Enrollment No.- 527
02 February 2023 DVC 2302060527AS500736
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Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited
Statement of Financial Position (Balance Sheet)

As at 30 June 2022
Not Amountin BDT
otes 2021
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 8,485,247,721 8,910,672,164
Construction work in progress 5 - 21,825,994
Un-installed Capital Investment Equipments 6 9,898,675 322,524,655
Un-installed Plant & Equipment 7 13,203,181 66,828,318
Intangible assets 8 604,323,825 -
Own finance Project 9 1,938,366,738 2,610,876,847
Depreciation fund investment 10 8,128,886,063 7,242,137,635
Loan to employees- Non-current portion 11 178,944,120 203,647,133
Total non-current assets 19,358,870,322 19,378,512,745
Current assets
Inventories 12 414,951,521 425,231,247
Trade and other receivables 13 1,401,502,171 3,332,858,995
Advances, deposits and prepayments 14 1,389,174,333 74,695,713
Loan to employees- Current portion 11 24,703,013 22,644,192
Investment in fixed deposit 15 2,291,396,905 3,373,354,286
Inter-company current account 16 6,618,196 8,009,147
Cash and cash equivalents 17 3,028,536,657 607,657,807
Total current assets 8,556,882,795 7,844,451,387
Total assets 27,915,753,117 27,222,964,132
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Capital and reserves
Share capital 18 3,916,304,800 3,156,303,400
Share money deposit 19 - 760,000,705
Retained earnings 20 8,585,225,927 8,318,868,322
12,501,530,727 12,235,172,427
Fund
Depreciation fund 21 8,128,886,063 7,242,137,635
8,128,886,063 7,242,137,635
Total equity 20,630,416,790 19,477,310,062
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
ADP loan interest 22 1,261,042,394 1,261,042,394
XMC retention money 23 1,366,104,499 1,067,248,750
Deferred Tax Libility 24 1,585,058,335 1,946,100,511
Total non-current liabilities 4,212,205,228 4,274,391,655
Current liabilities
Trade and other payable 25 473,489,933 794,936,070
Current account with Petrobangla 26 47,474,894 47,474,894
Other liabilities 27 62,358,005 152,773,765
Provision & accrued expenses 28 2,413,934,161 2,403,360,200
Current Tax Liabilities 29 75,874,106 72,717,487
Total current liabilities 3,073,131,099 3,471,262,415
Total liabilities 7,285,336,327 7,745,654,070

Total equity and liabilities 27,915,753,117 27,222,964,132

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

General Manager (F & A) Company Secretary Director Managing Director

Dhaka, Bangladesh
Date: 02 February 2023

M. ). ABEDIN & CO

Chartered Accountants
DVC: 2302060527AS500736
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Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Amount in BDT

Notes
Revenue 30 6,530,326,333 8,319,931,904
Cost of sales 31 (5,211,352,909) (5,897,414,555)
Gross profit 1,318,973,425 2,422,517,349
Administrative and selling expenses 32 (490,365,671) (534,003,037)
Operating profit 828,607,754 1,888,514,312
Other income 33 119,633,786 21,345,444
Finance income 34 719,110,237 766,146,706
Finance expense 35 (146,605,282) (5,311,567)
Profit before contribution to WPPF and tax 1,520,746,495 2,670,694,894
Contribution to workers' profit participation fund 36 (76,037,325) (133,534,744)
Profit before tax 1,444,709,170 2,537,160,150
Current Tax Expense 29.2 (637,041,881) (566,275,704)
Profit after current tax 807,667,289 1,970,884,446
Deferred Tax Income/(Expense) 24.1 361,042,176 207,015,863
Net profit after tax 1,168,709,465 2,177,900,309
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income 1,168,709,465 2,177,900,309

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

General Manager (F & A) Company Secretary Director Managing Director

Dhaka, Bangladesh
Date: 02 February 2023

M. ). ABEDIN & CO

Chartered Accountants
DVC: 2302060527AS500736
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Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Amountin BDT

Share money Retained Sub-Total Depreciation

deposit earnings fund UEE]

Share capital

For the year ended
30]June 2021

BalapceasatOljuly 3156303400  760,000705 9335309729 13251613834 6385614500 19637228333

Adjustment for
effect of deffered tax (2153116,374)

Opening Balance-

3,156,303,400 760,000,705 7,182,193,355 13,251,613,834 6,385,614,500 19,637,228,333

Restated

Net profit for the year - - 2177900309 2177900309 - 2177900309
Prior year's excess/

under) depreciation 11,816,342 11,816,342 11,816,342
WIP & other

e adiusomans 3481452 3481452 3,481,452
greap'}gieigtionfund 0 (856523135 (856523135  856,523135

Dividend paid FY: 2020 - - (200,000,000)  (200,000,000) - (200,000,000)

Balanceasat30June 356,303,400 760,000,705 8,318,868,322 14,388,288,801 7,242,137,635 21,630,426,436

For the year
ended 30 June
2022

Balance as at OLJuly 3156303400  760,000705 8318868322 12235172427 7242137635 19,477,310,062

Share allotment 760,001,400  (760,000,705) 5 700 = 700
Net profit for the year 1168,709,465  1,168,709,465 1,168,709,465

g;apqgﬁgtionfund to (886,748,428)  (886,748,428) 886,748,428

Coal Hale adjustment (8983998)  (8,983,998) (8983998)

Prior year adjustment

of foreign exchange
Auctuation - qainy (6619438)  (6,619.438) (6,619,438)

(Loss)
Dividend paid FY:
2020 - 2021

Balance as at 30
June 2022

3,916,304,800 - 8,585,225,927 12,501,530,727 8,128,886,063 20,630,416,790

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

General Manager (F & A) Company Secretary Director Managing Director
Dhaka, Bangladesh M.]. ABEDIN & CO
Date: 02 February 2023 Chartered Accountants

DVC: 2302060527AS500736
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Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Amount in BDT

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before tax 1,444,709,170 2,537,160,150
Adjustment for non-cash items:
Depreciation 886,748,428 861,849,894
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 67,147,092 55,046,554
Contribution to workers' profit participation fund
Unrealised Foreign exchange Loss/ (Gain) -
2,398,604,689 3,454,056,598
Changes in working capital components: _
gpecgg;%ee)éqtgcrease in advances, deposits and (1,319,360,353) 186,008,570
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 10,279,727 112,316,427
(Increase)/decrease trade and other receivables 1,931,356,824 (2,107,678,747)
(Increase)/decrease in loan to employees 22,644,192 11,126,871
Increase/(decrease) trade and other payable (365,225,914) 107,344,466
Increase/(decrease) other liabilities (90,415,760) 61,108,106
Increase/(decrease) provision & accured expenses 10,573,961 602,592,038
Adjustment in Retained Earnings 8,983,998 -
Cash generated from operations 208,836,676 (1,027,182,269)
Income tax paid (520,084,307) (477,079,624)
Net cash from operating activities 2,087,357,058 1,949,794,706
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (59,265,889) (759,185,135)
Depreciation fund investment (886,748,428) (856,523,135)
Investment in FD Accounts 1,081,957,380 128,830,691
Payment for Own finance project - (2,300,000)
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities 135,943,063 (1,489,181,580)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid - (200,000,000)
(Increase)/decrease in inter-company current account 1,390,951 1,705,873
Payment of retention money from XMC 196,187,777 220,633,592
Net cash used in financing activities 197,578,728 22,339,465
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 2,420,878,850 482,952,592
Opening cash and cash equivalents 607,657,807 124,705,215
Closing cash and cash equivalents 3,028,536,657 607,657,807

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

General Manager (F & A) Company Secretary

Director

Managing Director

Dhaka, Bangladesh
Date: 02 February 2023

M. ). ABEDIN & CO

Chartered Accountants
DVC: 2302060527AS500736
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Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

1. Reporting entity

1.1

1.2

1.3

Company profile

Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited (BCMCL) “ the comapny” was established and
incorporated on 04 August 1998 vide certificate no. RAJC-164 under the Companies Act, 1994 as a
public limited company; limited by shares, to take over Barapukuria Coal Mine Development Project
from Bangladesh Qil, Gas and Mineral Corporation (Petrobangla). This includes acquisition of all
identifiable assets and assumption of all liabilities, including contingent liabilities, if any, attached
to the project till the acquisition date. The registered office of the company is located at Village:
Chowhati, PS: Parbatipur, District: Dinajpur, Bangladesh. The company has started its commercial
operation from 10 September 2005.

Nature of business

The company is primarily involved in coal mining, selling and marketing coal and its by-products to
commercial power plants and other domestic users. Power development board (PDB) is one of the
major customers of the company.

The coal mining project

The coal deposit at Barapukuria in Dinajpur was found by the Geological Survey of Bangladesh.
(GSB) in 1985. After undertaking various feasibility studies on the Barapukuria coal deposit the
government of Bangladesh (GoB) had decided to set up a coal mine. The mining activities carry out
by the company are being directly supervised by Petrobangla, the parent organisation of BCMCL.

Thereserve of the coal mine was estimated to be 300-400 million tons in total. The coal basin covers
an area of 5.25-7.00 sq. kilometer, depth of coal seam is 118-506 meters and the number of coal
seam is 6 (six) . Total minable reserve is estimated to be 64 (sixty four) million tons. The coal mine is
developed with a view to extract 1 (one) million ton coal per year. Life of mine has been estimated to
be 64 (sixty four) years whereas costing of the project is based on a period of 30 years.

The construction period of the project was initially estimated to be 5 years from 1 june 1996 to 31
May 2001. This was subsequently increased up to 31 May 2005. Total pre-operation investment to
the project was BDT 14,311.26 million (USS 254.79m).

The projecthas beenimplemented underafinancialand technical assistance of a Chinese consortium
led by China National Machinery Import & Export Corporation (CMC) under a contract signed between
the CMC and Petrobangla on 07 February 1994 as the terms and conditions specified therein. The
contract specifies the requirement of execution, completion, and ramification of any defects therein
on a turnkey basis. The foreign currency portion of the contract price was substantially supported
via supplier's credit facility provided, through Bank of China, by CMC under the terms of consortium.

The revised mode of financing has been determined as follows:

USS/Million BDT/Million

(i) Local Currency (Provided by GOB):
(a) Loan = 4,226.74
(b) Equity = 2,817.82
- 7,044.56

(iiy Foreign Currency:

(a) Cash (Provided by GOB) 35.81 1,829.10
(b) Suppliers credit 95.40 5,437.60
131.21 7,266.70
131.21 14,311.26
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Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

3.

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting
Standard (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, and other applicable laws and regulations.

Date of authorisation

The audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 were authorized by the Board of
Directors on 02 February 2023.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost and going concern basis.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (BDT), which is both functional and
presentation currency of the company. The figures in the financial statements have been rounded
off to the nearest BDT.

Reporting period

These financial statements of the company cover a financial year from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022
and will be following consistently.

Summary of significant accounting policies

3.1

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognized as an asset if, and only if;
a) it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and

b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment qualifying for recognition is initially measured at its cost.
Cost comprises expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. The cost
of self-constructed asset includes the following: the cost of materials and direct labour; any other
costs directly attributable to bring the asset to a working condition for their intended use; and when
the company has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located.

Subsequent costs
a) Repairs and maintenance expenditure is recognised as an expenditure when incurred.

b) Replacement cost is capitalised, provided that the original cost of the items they replace
is derecognised.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised:

a) upon disposal; or

b) when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

3.2

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the difference
between the net proceed from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Depreciation

Depreciation is commenced when the asset is in the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended. Property plant and equipment of Barapukuria Coal
Mining Company Limited are depreciated using straight line method. Depreciation is charged for an
asset from the date of purchase. Each significant part of an item of property, plant and equipment is
depreciated separately, using their useful lives. If any residual value is considered for an asset on its
expiry of expected life, the value is deducted from the cost to arrive at the depreciable amount. The
residual value and useful life of the assets are reviewed in each year end. Depreciation is expressed
in terms of percentage of cost of the related assets.

The annual depreciation rates applicable for different category of assets are:

2022 3 2021
Shaft and under ground development 3.33% 3.33%
Civilengineering ,workshop, warehouse, administrative and welfare building 2.50% 2.50%
Plant and equipment 15% 15%
Freehold concrete of brick structure 2.5% 2.5%
Sheds and temporary structures 10% 10%
Walls and store yard / boundary wall 5% 5%
Other construction 2.5% 2.5%
Furniture and fixtures 10% 10%
Domestic appliance 15% 15%
Office equipment 15% 15%
Telecom and computer equipment 15% 15%
Workshop equipment 15% 15%
Electrical installation 15% 15%
Other equipment/ survey 15% 15%
Medical equipment 15% 15%
Distribution / electric lines 5% 5%
Deep tube-well 10% 10%
Water pumps 20% 20%
Water pipelines and tanks 10% 10%
Motor vehicles 20% 20%
Unclassified U.G. telephone line 5% 5%

Intangible Assets

Recognition and Measurement
“Expenditure on research activities is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the
product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable
and the company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell
the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.”

Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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3.3

3.4

3.5

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is generally recognised
in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives of intangible asset is as follows:
Development cost (North-South extension study project) 10 Years

Impairment

The carrying value of the company's assets other than inventories are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying
amount of the asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses,
if any, are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial instruments

As per IFRS - 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” all financial instruments are presented in a
way so that users are enabled to evaluate the significance and nature and extent of risks arising
from financial instruments to which the entity is exposed during the period and how the entity
manages those risks.

Investment in fixed deposits

Investment in fixed deposits is shown in the financial statements at its cost and interest income is
recognised quarterly and half yearly.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits with bank and financial institutions
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to aninsignificant risk
of changesin value.

Trade, other and inter-company receivables

Trade, other and intercompany receivables are recognised at original invoiced amount. Receivables
are stated at netted off provision for bad and doubtful debt and written off. Provision is made in
the financial statements considering the uncertainty of recovery at the date of the statement of
financial position and bad debts are written off when the debt become finally irrecoverable based on
assessment and judgment made by senior management of the company.

Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised at fair value.

Accruals

Accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but have not
been paid, invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier, including amount due to employees.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings are classified into both current and non-current liabilities. In compliance with the
requirements of IAS - 23 "Borrowing Costs,” borrowing costs which are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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3.6

3.7

3.8

Inventories

Inventories comprise of coals, materials, spares and consumable goods in the ordinary course of
business within the company’'s normal operating cycle. The company complies with the principles
of IAS - 2 "Inventories” and recognise inventories at the reporting date at lower of cost and net
realisable value and without making up due allowance for any obsolescence and slow moving item.
Cost of inventory is measured using average cost formula.

Valuation of Sedimented coal includes cost of transportation from water treatment plant to coal yard.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If a transfer
of economic benefit is no longer probable the provision is reversed. Where the effect of time value
of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity; or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not
recognised because:

a) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; or

b) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognised but a disclosure is made
regarding those assets if it is probable that the assets will be realised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when all of the following criteria are satisfied:

Sale of goods

In compliance with the requirements of IFRS 15 : Revenue from Contracts with Customers, Revenue
is recognized when control is passed at a certain point in times. Following factors are considered to
determine when control is passed:

i)  Theentity has a present right to payment for the Goods;

i) The customer has legal title to the Goods;

iii) The company has transferred physical possession of the Goods;

iv) The customer has the significant risks and rewards related to the ownership of the Goods; and
v) The customer has accepted the Goods.

The transaction price comprise sales price against sales including value added tax paid to the
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3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

Government of Bangladesh. However, VAT included in sales is not considered as revenue as it is
collected on behalf of customers.

Finance income
Finance income comprise interest income on funds invested in FDRs and SNDs.

Otherincome
This includes rental income, interest on house building loan and others.

Finance cost

Finance cost comprises interest expense on borrowings, overdrafts, etc. All borrowing costs are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income using the effective interest method.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises both current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised
in the statement of profit orloss and other comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity in accordance with the
requirements of IAS 12: Income Taxes.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rate enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable
or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable is the best estimate of
the tax amount expected to be paid that reflects uncertainty related to income tax, if any. Current
tax assets/liabilities are offset if certain criteria are met. It is measured using tax rates enacted or
subsequently enacted at the reporting period. The applicable tax rate for Barapukuria Coal Mining
Company Limited is currently 27.50% on tax basis of the Finance Act, 2022,

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax has been computed and accounted for in compliance with IAS 12 : Income Taxes. The
company'’s policy of recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities is based on temporary differences
(Taxable or duductible) between the carrying amount (Book value) of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and its tax base, and accordingly, deferred tax income/expenses has
been considered to determine net profit after tax.

A deferred Tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available, against which temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized.

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities are presented under indirect method in accordance with IAS - 7
"Statement of Cash Flows".

Contribution to workers’ profit participation fund

This is required to be made in terms of section 234(1)(b) of Bangladesh Labour Act 2006 (as
amended in 2013 & 2018). 5% of the net profit of each year, not later than nine (9) months from
the close of that period, is required to be transferred to the fund. The proportion of the payment to
the participation fund and the welfare fund being 80:10. The remaining 10% of the amount of the
said 5% shall be paid by the company to the workers’ welfare foundation fund, as formed under the
provision of the Bangladesh Worker's Welfare Foundation Act 2006 (as amended in 2013). Out of
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3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

80% transferred to the participation fund, two-third has to be distributed in equal proportion to all
the members (beneficiary) of the fund in cash and rest one-third has to be invested in accordance
with the manner as stated in section 242 of that Act.

The company makes provision @ 5% of its net profit before tax as a contribution to workers' profit
participation fund and recognise as expense.

Employee benefits

The company maintains a defined contribution plan (provident fund) and a retirement benefit plan
(gratuity fund) for its eligible permanent employees.

Defined contribution plan (provident fund)

Defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which the company provides
benefits to all of its permanent employees. All permanent employees contribute 10% of their
basic salary to the provident fund and the company also makes contribution 8.33%. This fund is
recognised by the National Board of Revenue (NBR).

Retirement benefit obligations (gratuity)

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan (gratuity fund) other than a defined
contribution plan. The obligation is one month's last basic salary or wages of the regular employees.
The company operates an funded gratuity scheme, provision in respect of which is made annually
covering all its permanent eligible employees.

Offsetting

The entity does not offset assets and liabilities or income and expenses, unless required or
permitted by any IFRSs.

Depreciation Fund

The fund has been created as per Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited Depreciation Fund
Policy. Initially the fund was created by Tk.425.35 crore against the accoumulated depreciation as per
aforesaid policy. The subsequent transfer to the fund has been made depending on the availability
of fund as per clause 4.00 (ii) of the Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited Depreciation Fund
Policy but not exceeding the yearly depreciation so charged in the relevant year after maintaing 1.1
Liquidity Ratio.

Aninvestmentaccount named “Depreciation Fund Investment (Term Deposit)” has been maintained
against the same amount of Fund balance.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting date that provide additional information about the company's position at
the reporting date are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting period that
are non-adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.
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Amountin BDT

2022 2021

4. Property, plant and equipment
This is made up as follows:
Cost
Opening balance 22,776,627,595 22,528,754,905
Addition during the year 462,064,865 640,835,084
Disposal/adjustment during the year - (392,962,393)
Closing balance (a) 23,238,692,460 22,776,627,595
Depreciation
Opening balance 13,865,955,431 13,015,921,879
Depreciation Charge for the year 886,748,428 861,849,894
Disposal/adjustment during the year 740,880 (11,816,342)
Closing balance (b) 14,753,444,739 13,865,955,431
Net book value (a-b) 8.485,247,721 8,910,672,164

Details are in Annexure - A.
5. Construction work in progress

Amount in Taka

Cost
; Balance as at Addition Transfer Balanceasat | Balanceasat
Particulars 01-07-21 Duringthe | Duringthe 30-06-22 30-06-2021
Year Year
gjltlglrr'%d coresample | 15558507 | 3517775 | 16,045,982 : 12,528,207
‘b‘jifgirr'%d Seee 9,297,787 | 16,967,452 | 26,265,239 . 9,297,787
Total | 21,825,994 |20,485,227 | 42,311,221 - 21,825,994
6. Un-installed Capital Investment Equipments
This is made up as follows:
Opening balance 322,524,655 -
Addition during the year - 322,524,655
Transfer to Property, Plant & Equipment (312,625,980) -
Closing balance 9,898,675 322,524,655
7. Un-installed Plant & Equipment
This is made up as follows:
Opening balance 66,828,318 -
Addition during the year 15,047,678 66,828,318
Transfer to Property, Plant & Equipment (68,672,816) -
Closing balance 13,203,181 66,828,318

8. Intangible Assets

This represents development cost of North-South extension study project which has been accounted for

as per requirement of IFRS 6 and IAS 38:

Cost

Opening balance

Addition during the year 671,470,917
Closing balance 671,470,917
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Amountin BDT

2022 2021
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance - .
Amortisation during the year 67,147,092 -
Closing balance 67,147,092 -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 604,323,825 -

Development expenses of “Feasibility study for extension of existing underground mining operation of
Barapukuria Coal Mine towards the southern & the northern side of the basin without interupption of the
present production (2" revised) " project incured from BCMCL own fund. As per audit report on 30 June
2019 of the company total implementation expenses of the project was taka 672,510,107.92 which was
recorded as own finance project expenditure of the company. Out of this amount taka 1,039,192.00 has
been transferred as capital expenditureéProperty, Plant & Equipment) and taka 671,470,915.92 has been
transferred as Intangible Asset and decided to amortize the asset over the period of next 10 years starting

from financial year 2021-2022 as per decision of 325™ Board Meeting.
The basis for recognition of Intangible assets has been stated in note - 3.2

9. Own Finance Project
This consists of as follows:

North-South extension study project cost 672,510,109 672,510,109
Iégz?br'rl']rsgsfer to intangible assets & property, plant & (672,510,109) )
Feasibility study of Dighipara coal field project cost 1,938,366,738 1,938,366,738
1,938,366,738 2,610,876,847
10.Depreciation fund investment (Term Deposit)
This consists of as follows:
Opening balance 7,242,137,635 6,385,614,500
Appropriation;
Add: Interest earned on investment 398,342,709 251,396,546
Add: Transfered from own fund investment 488,405,719 681,584,935
886,748,428 932,981,481
8,128,886,063 7,318,585,981
Less: Adjustment during the year - (76,458,346)
Closing balance 8,128,886,063 7,242,137,635
Details are in AnnexB.
11.Loan to employees
Non-current portion:
House building loan (note-11.1) 178,944,120 203,584,715
Motor cycle loan (note-11.2) - 62,418
178,944,120 203,647,133
Current portion:
House building loan (note-11.1)
Motor cycle loan (note-11.2) 24,640,595 22,580,730
62,418 63,462
24,703,013 22,644,192
203,647,133 226,291,325
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Amountin BDT

2022 2021
11.1 House building loan
Non-current portion 178,944,120 203,584,715
Current portion 24,640,595 22,580,730
203,584,715 226,165,445
Details are in Annex C.
11.2 Motorcycleloan
Non-current portion - 62,418
Current portion 62,418 63,462
62,418 125,880
12.Inventories
This consists of as follows:
Stock of Production Coal - -
Stock of Sedimented Coal 1,116,627 2,069,228
Store & spares - Consumables 412,645,240 423,162,019
Unused printing & stationery 1,189,654 -
414,951,521 425,231,247

Coal has been produced in this period (1%t July 2021 to 30" June 2022) from underground 4,88,676.046
metric tons. In this period total 4,87,926.046 metric tons coal was delivered to BPDB, 750.00 metric tons
used for BCMCL industrial bailer. So closing stock of production coal was nill.

Previously the sedimented coal that was being collected from Water Treatment Plant (WTP) was counted
with production coal. From the financial year 2020-2021 sedimented coal have been counted separately
as sedimented coal. That's why the opening stock of sedimented coal for this period was 5,289.68 metric
tons. Sedimented coal has been collected in this period from WTP 2,341.64 metric tons and sales 3,800.00
metric tons. Taking consideration of the opening stock, coal collected from WTP & sales the quantity of
closing stock of sedimented coal was 3,831.32 metric tons which found in the coal yard by measurement
committee on 30 June 2022.

13.Trade and other receivables

This is made up as follows:

Trade receivables (Note-13.01) 1,203,834,980 3,171,780,404
Other receivables (Note-13.02) 197,667,191 161,078,591
1,401,502,171 3,332,858,995

13.1 Tradereceivables

Trade receivables are unsecured, considered good and recoverable within one year. Trade receivables
disclosure as per Schedule-XI, Part-I, of the Companies Act, 1994 are as follows:

Receivables due below six months 1,203,834,980 3,115,673,223
Receivables due over six months - 56,107,181
1,203,834,980 3,171,780,404

Trade Receivable represents receivable from BPDB against sale of coal.
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Amountin BDT

2022 2021
13.2 Otherreceivables
This is made up as follows:
Accrued interest on FDR (Note - 13.2.1) 127,272,680 130,038,655
Interest receivable on HBL 39,303,711 -
Sundry debtor (Anower Hossain) 50,165 -
VAT paid on behalf of BPDB 31,039,936 31,039,936
Other accounts receivable 700 -
197,667,191 161,078,591
13.2.1 Accrued interest on FDR
Opening balance 130,038,655 73,289,612
Add: Interest accrued during the year 651,778,576 130,038,655
781,817,231 203,328,267
Less: Received during the year (654,544,551) (73,289,612)
Closing balance 127,272,680 130,038,655
14.Advances, deposits and prepayments
Advances to:
Contractor (note 14.1) 1,151,742,533 -
Suppliers (note 14.2) 1,643,610 1,992,491
Advances against:
Material purchase (goods in transit) (note 14.3) 160,562,034 8,641,940
Advance against CD/VAT 1,963,754 -
Advance against expenses (note 14.4) 2,045,000 -
Incentive bonus advance (Annex-D) 23,706,432 18,078,507
Advance to Others (note 14.5) 36,795,954 37,273,830
Deposits with:;
Bangladesh Power Development Board 6,929,525 6,929,525
Linde Bangladesh Limited 360,000 360,000
DG, BMD 100,000 -
Bangladesh Telecommunications Company Limited 85,780 85,780
Prepayments (note 14.6) 3,239,712 1,333,640
1,389,174,333 74,695,713
14.1 Contractor
XMC/CMC (foreign currency) 908,002,318 -
XMC/CMC (local currency) 238,858,482 -
1,146,860,800 -
Foreign Exchange rate fluctuation Gain/(Loss) 4,881,733 -
1,151,742,533

The amount represents 5% (five percent) Advance payment/down payment of the basic contract
price equal to USS 9,763,465.78 and 5% of the local component portion excluding spares,
consumables, materials, Capital equipment & capital Investment equipment to Bangladeshi Taka
238,858,482.33. Total in Bangladeshi Taka 1,146,860,799.87 (foreign & local currency) as per
clause no. GCC/PCC78.1 & 78.4 of CEOMAW-2021 Contract No. BCMCL/CEOMAW-2021. Total Advance
payment Taka 1,146,860,799.87 was adjusted in 42 monthly equal installments from 42 Interim
payment certificates as per clause number GCC/PCC 78.4 of CEOMAW-2021 Contract No. BCMCL/

CEOMAW-2021.
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Amountin BDT

2022 2021
14.2 Suppliers (Pre-payment):
Jamuna Oil Company Limited 1,100,122 1,086,032
Connect Distributiob/Linde/BOC (Bangladesh) Limited 507,434 870,405
Madhapara Granite Mining Co. Limited =
Telephone Shilpa Sangstha 36,054 36,054
1,643,610 1,992,491
14.3 Material purchase (goods in transit)
Opening balance 8,641,940 6,660,553
Add: Addition during the year 160,562,034 2,751,056
169,203,974 9,411,609
Less: (8,641,940) (769,668)
Closing balance 160,562,034 8,641,940
14.4 Advance against expenses
Kazi Ruhul Amin, Manager 300,000 -
Md. Safaet Ali, DM 195,000 -
Md. Akram Hossain Zishan, DM 350,000 -
Azmir Hossain Awlad, AM 600,000 -
Limon Islam, AM 600,000 -
2,045,000 -
14.5 Others (Details in Annex-G)
Opening balance 37,273,830 4,792,270
Add: Addition during the year 2,780,152 35,536,991
40,053,582 40,329,261
Less: Adjustment during the year (3,258,028) (3,055,431)
Closing balance 36,795,954 37,273,830
14.6 Prepayments
Security guards salary (Anser) 1,336,018 1,333,640
Jibon Bima Corporation 1,903,694 -
3,239,712 1,333,640
15.Investment in fixed deposit
This is arrived at as follows:
Opening balance 3,373,354,286 3,502,184,977
Add: Addition During the year 315,000,000 1,030,000,000
Add: Income During the year 209,880,428 204,085,026
Add: Opening accrue interest - 73,289,612
Add: Transfer from Depreciation fund - 203,141,719
3,898,234,714 5,012,701,333
Less: Closing accrue interest - 48,731,623
Less: Encashed during the year 1,095,848,945 1,566,322,684
Less: TDS & Excise duty 22,583,144 24,292,741
Less: Transfer to Depreciation fund 488,405,719 -
Closing balance 2,291,396,905 3,373,354,286

Details in Annexure - E
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Amountin BDT

Director, Petrobangla

2022 2021
16.Inter-company current account
This consists of as follows:
Sylhet Gas Field Co. Ltd. - 8,733
BAPEX 19,115 19,115
MGMCL - (266,020)
Bakharabad Gas distribution co. Ltd. - 35,560
PGCL 557,670 2,170,348
Titas Gas T & D Co. Ltd. 14,330 14,330
GTCL (16,298) (16,298)
Projects:
J.LM.C 427,252 427,252
Jamalgonj Coal Field 5,616,127 5,616,127
6,618,196 8,009,147
17.Cash and cash equivalents
This consists of as follows:
Cashinhand 113,000 93,000
Cash at bank (note 17.1) 3,028,423,657 607,564,807
3,028,536,657 607,657,807
17.1 Cash atbank
Name of bank SND account no.
Rupali Bank Limited 0422024000007 1,803,490 4,674,356
Agrani Bank Limited 0200002127447 2,178,685,575 101,659,963
Janata Bank Limited 0100031528733 191,068,233 20,326,038
IFIC Bank Limited 1017127133041 525,983,075 375,094,909
Janata Bank Limited 0100001503426 8,511,070 1,513,883
Sonali Bank Limited 1831736000032 122,372,213 104,295,658
3,028,423,657 607,564,807
18.Share capital
This represents
Authorised:
700,000,000 ordinary shares of BDT 10 each 7,000,000,000 7,000,000,000
Issued:
391,630,480 ordinary share of BDT 10 each 3,916,304,800 3,156,303,400
Composition of shareholding:
Name of shareholder Number of shares Percentage (%) Amount BDT
Nazmul Ahsan, Chairman, Petrobangla 1 0% 10
A KM Benjamin Riazi, Director,
Petrobangla 1 0% 10
Md. Altaf Hossain Director, Petrobangla 1 0% 10
Engr. Md. Shaheenur Islam 1 0% 10
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Amountin BDT

2022 2021
Engr. AliMohd. Al-Mamun 0
Director, Petrobangla ! 0% 10
Engr. Alilgbal Md. Nurullah, Director, 1 0% 10
Petrobangla
Ruchira Islam, Secretary, Petrobangla 1 0% 10
Petrobangla 391,630,473 100% 3,916,304,730
391,630,480 100% 3,916,304,800
19.Share money deposit
Opening balance 760,000,705 760,000,705
Add: Addition during the year = -
760,000,705 760,000,705
Less: Adjustment during the year 760,000,705 -
Closing balance - 760,000,705
20.Retained earnings
This is arrived at as follows:
Opening balance 8,318,868,322 9,335,309,729
Adjustment for effect of deffered tax (2,153,116,374)
Opening Balance- Restated 7,182,193,355
Prior year's excess/(under) in Incentive Bonus - 3,481,452
Adjustment for share allotment 5 -
Prior year's excess/(under) CWIP & other - 11,816,342
Add: Net profit for the year 1,168,709,465 2,177,900,309
9,487,577,791 9,375,391,457
Less: Dividend paid FY: 2020-21 - (200,000,000)
Transfer to depreciation fund (8,983,998)
Pr|lor year adjustment of foreign exchange fluctuation (6,619,438)
gain/(Loss)
Transfer to depreciation fund (886,748,428) (856,523,135)
Closing balance 8,585,225,927 8,318,868,322
21.Depreciation fund
This is arrived at as follows:
Opening balance 7,242,137,635 6,385,614,500
Add: Addition during the year 886,748,428 932,981,481
8,128,886,063 7,318,585,981
Less: Adjustment during the year = 76,458,346
Closing balance 8,128,886,063 7.242,137,635
The basis for recognition of Depreciation Fund has been
stated in note - 3.17
22.ADP loan interest
This represents interest on loan for:
(a) Barapukuria Coal Mine Project (BCMP) 1,165,551,605 1,165,551,605
(b) Compensation package for rehabilatation the affected 95,490,789 95,490,789

people of Barapukuria Coal Mine (Central part) prokolpo.

1,261,042,394

1,261,042,394
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Amountin BDT

2022 2021
23.XMC retention money
Opening balance 1,067,248,750 846,615,158
Add: Addition during the year 196,187,777 220,633,592
Add: Exchange (Gain)/Loss 102,667,971 -
1,366,104,499 1,067,248,750

Less: Paid during the year . -
Closing balance 1,366,104,499 1,067,248,750

The amount represents 10% (ten percent) for 3 contract & 5% (five percent) for 4™ contract retention
against the monthly payment of services received.

24.Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities recognized in accordance with the provisions of IAS 12: Income taxes, is as follows:

30 June 2022
Carrying Amount Tax Base Temporary difference
Carrying amount of Property, Plant
& Equipment excluding permanent 6,376,926,665 613,078,172 5,763,848,492
differences
Applicable Tax Rate 27.50%
Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities 1,585,058,335
30 June 2021
Carrying Amount Tax Base Temporary difference
Carrying amount of Property, Plant
& Equipment excluding permanent 6,802,351,108 315,349,405 6,487,001,703
differences
Applicable Tax Rate 30%
Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities 1,946,100,511
24.1. Deferred Tax Income is arrived at as follows: Amount in BDT
2022 2021
Closing Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 1,585,058,335 1,946,100,511
(-) Opening Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 1,946,100,511 2,153,116,374
Deferred Tax (Income)/Expenses for the year (361,042,176) (207,015,863)
25.Trade and other payables
This is made-up as follows:
Trade payables (Note 25.1) 468,440,748 790,309,597
Other payables (Note 25.2) 5,049,186 4,626,473
473,489,933 794,936,070
25.1 Aging of Trade payables are given below:
Payables due below six months 47,437,618 102,148,202
Payables due over six months 421,003,130 688,161,395
468,440,748 790,309,597
25.2 Other payables
This represents:
Sundry Creditors 3,187,455 2,552,317
Other Payable 1,861,731 2,074,156
5,049,186 4,626,473

@ BCMCL
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Amountin BDT

2022 2021
26.Current account with Petrobangla
Opening balance 47,474,894 47,474,894
Add/Less:  Addition/Adjustment i i
during the year
47,474,894 47,474,894
Closing balance 47,474,894 47,474,894
27.0ther liabilities
This consists of as follows:
Security deposit (note 27.1) 5,024,067 1,728,139
VAT on sale of coal 57,333,938 151,045,626
62,358,005 152,773,765
27.1 Security deposit
Opening balance 1,728,139 2,281,711
Add: Addition during the year 4,200,664 3,035,398
5,928,803 5,317,109
Less: Adjustment during the year (904,736) (3,588,970)
Closing balance 5,024,067 1,728,139
Details are in Annex F.,
28.Provision and accrued expenses
This is made-up as follows:
Provision for expenses (Note - 28.1) 2,324,175,625 2,269,418,871
Provision for gratuity (Note - 28.2) 367,736 406,585
Provision for WPPF (Note - 28.3) 89,390,799 133,534,744
2,413,934,161 2,403,360,200
28.1 Provision for expenses
Mining operation cost
Royalty expense 1,920,348,549 1,516,029,318
Electricity bill 233,273,215 342,297,601
Incentive bonus 33,459,620 38,665,257
Consultancy fee 27,912,913 17,317,003
Audit fee 24,853,003 11,232,085
Telephone bill 552,000 241,500
Donation/CSR 99,744 111,425
Advertisement expense 2,569,000 13,078,920
Security expense 196,869 10,000
Out Sourcing Wages 1,112,823 2,133,094
Staff Overtime 4,384,328 4,826,717
Rent 264,292 293,130
Spare & consumabe 15,000 25,800
Petrol, Oil & Lubricants 24,481,272 2,760,875
Pre-shipment 529,736 427,798
Petrobangla Service charge 1,517,626 2,753,004
Legal Expenses - 274,448,000
Leave Salary 17,250 -
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Amountin BDT

2022 2021
Newspaper 45,724,262 39,717,083
R & Mvehicle 33,466 -
R & M Office Equipment 202,000 -
R & M Plant & Machinery - 36,000
UG Allowance 55,000 2,141,000
WASA Bill 21,775 25131
Stationary & Printing 7,402 2,324
Wages 2,960 833,706
Miscellaneous expense 2,520 12,100
2,539,000
2,324,175,625 2,269,418,871
28.2 Provision for gratuity (Deputed employees from JLMC)
Opening balance 406,585 406,585
Add: Provision made for the year =
406,585 406,585
Less: Paid during the year (38,849) -
Closing balance 367,736 406,585
28.3 Provision for WPPF
Opening balance 133,534,744 142,926,267
Add: Provision made during the year (note- 35) 76,037,325 133,534,744
209,572,069 276,461,011
Less: Paid during the year (120,181,270) (142,926,267)
Closing balance 89,390,799 133,534,744
29.Current Tax Liabilities/ (Assets)
This is arrived at as follows :
Opening balance 761,148,045 882,362,234
Add: Addition during the year (note 29.2) 595,958,413 761,148,045
1,357,106,458 1,643,510,279
Less: Adjustment during the year (761,148,045) (882,362,234)
595,958,413 761,148,045
Closing balance 595,358,413 761,148,045
Less- Advance Income Tax (520,084,307) (688,430,558)
Closing Balance 75,874,106 72,717,487
29.1 Advance Income Tax
Opening balance 688,430,558 828,145,747
Add: Addition during the year (note 29.1.1) 520,084,307 477,079,624
1,208,514,865 1,305,225,370
Less: Adjustment during the year (688,430,558) (616,794,812)
Closing balance 520,084,307 688,430,558
29.1.1 Addition during the year 448,070,297 415,468,719
Advance income tax-u/s-64 72,014,010 61,610,905
Tax deducted at source 520,084,307 477,079,624
29.2 Current Tax Expense

This represents the amount of corporate income tax which is higher of 27.50% on taxable profit,
0.60% of gross receipt and income tax deducted at source under section 82C of Income Tax
Ordinance (ITO) 1984 imposed by the Government through Finance Act 2022, calculated as under;

89



Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Amountin BDT

2022 2021
Taxable Income 2,167,121,501 2,537,160,150
27.50% on taxable profit (A) 595,958,413 761,148,045
Gross received
Revenue 6,530,326,333 8,319,931,904
Otherincome 119,633,786 21,345,444
Finance income 719,110,237 766,146,706
7,369,070,356 9,107,424,053
0.60% (point six zero %) of gross receipt (B) 44,214,422 54,644,544
A_ppllcable corporate income tax for the year- 595,958,413 761,148,045
higherof AandB
Adjustment for (over)/under provision in previous year 41,083,468 (194,872,341)
Income tax expense for the year 637,041,881 566,275,704
30.Revenue
This represents sale of coal to:
BPDB 6,530,326,333 8,319,762,634
Others - 169,270
6,530,326,333 8,319,931,904

Revenue from sales to BPDB earned by delivering 487,926.046 metric tons coal in 2022 and
7,53,362.850 metric tons in 2021. Details of sales is given below:

: Sales Price with VAT

No. Period Quantity (M.T) Total Amount (Taka) VAT @ 5% (Taka)
BPDB:

1 July'2021 67,197.330 742,093,714 37,104,686 779,198,400
2 August’2021 - - - -
3 September2021 - - - -
4 October'2021 18,124.489 202,042,741 10,102,137 212,144,878
5 November'2021 56,157.419 626,744,875 31,337,244 658,082,119
6 December2021 76,318.779 851,755,733 42,587,787 894,343,520
7 January'2022 73,359.432 1,111,013,926 55,550,656 1,166,564,622
8 Febuary'2022 23,234.260 351,878,220 17,593,911 369,472,131
9 March'2022 89,545.323 1,359,298,003 67,964,900 1,427,262,903
10 April'2022 77.955.313 1,186,791,685 59,339,585 1,246,131,270
11 May'2022 761.689 11,951,206 597,559 12,548,765
12 June'2022 5,272.012 86,756,230 4,337,811 91,094,041

Grand Total 487,926.046 6,530,326,333 326,516,316 6,856,842,649

Price of coal has been revised from USD 130 to USD 176 through office order no. 28.02.0000.028.37.003.15
.96/1(9) dated 05 January 2023 by the Ministry of Power, Energy and Mineral Resources (Energy and Mineral
Divisition). The effect of rate change has been in force from 01 January 2022.
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Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Amountin BDT

2022 2021
31.Cost of sales
This is made-up as follows:
Opening stock (Production Coal) OOM.T. - -
Opening stock (Sedimented Coal) 5,289.68 M. T. 2,069,228 37,834,158
Add : Materials, spare & consumables (31.1) 44,269,618 210,454,269
Other production cost (31.2) 32,380,949 28,840,891
Management & production cost(XMQ) 2,849,219,094 3,007,179,307
Repair & Maintenance(31.3) 5,739,164 7,244,656
Operational expenses (31.4) 157,414,374 127,719,999
Depreciation 863,944,654 840,502,360
CD/VAT 53,643,163 221,834,952
Electricity bill 402,200,186 419,730,462
Consultancy service 56,096,087 45,263,756
LC charge & commission 2,175,360 -
Royalty for coal Production 751,146,909 957,547,379
5,218,229,558 5,866,318,070
5,220,298,786 5,904,152,228
Less: Internal Coal Use 750.00M.T 7,829,250 4,668,445
Less: Closing stock (Production Coal) OOM.T. = -
Less: Closing stock (Sedimented Coal) 3,831.32M.T. 1,116,627 2,069,228
_5,211,352,909 5,897,414,555
31.1 Materials, Spare & Consumable:
Opening balance 01.07.21 423,162,019 499,713,516
Add. Purchase during the year :
Materials purchase for coal production 24,544,898 127,869,370
Power and fuel 9,207,941 5,896,249
Face Development materials - 137,153
33,752,839 133,902,772
456,914,858 633,616,288
Less: Closing stock 30.06.22 412,645,240 423,162,018

31.2 Other Production Cost

Mining allowance officer
Mining allowance staff

Wages of casual labour/Wages
Outsourcing staffs salaries
Underground allowance

31.3 Repair & Maintenance
R & M machinery & equipments

31.4 Operational Expenses

Pay and allowances - Support Personnel :
Basic Salary-0ff- Opt

Basic Salary-Staff-Opt.

Boishakhi Allow. - Off. - Opt.

Boishakhi Allow. - Staff - Opt.

Domestric Aid Allow. -Opt.

Education Subsidy - Off- Opt.

44269618 _ 210,454,269 _

29,908,699 26,109,596
2,053,326 2,165,897
75,050 26,980
2,115 308,964
341,759 229,454

32380949 _ 28,840,891

5,739,164 7,244,656
5,739,164 7,244,696
49,644,790 41,359,036
3,443,289 3,396,653
725,766 676,779

- 44,027

195,948 219,034
521,748 499,100
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Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Amountin BDT

2022 2021
Education Subsidy - Staff- Opt. 122,058 122,700
Festival Bonus- Off.- Opt 6,924,604 5,879,968
Festival bonus- Staff- Opt 476,508 473,190
Gas Allow-0Off-Opt 1,153,137 962,422
Gas Allow-Staff-Opt 196,576 202,725
Gratuity Opt- Officer 9,216,827 2,612,508
Gratuity Opt- Staff 269,814 245,285
Healt Hazard Allowance - Opt (Staff) 510,289 524,784
Health Hazard Allowance (Officer) - Opt 7,471,200 6,526,564
House Rent Allow.- Off-Opt 17,478,644 15,344,234
House Rent Allow.-Staff-Opt 1,497,943 1,470,348
Incentive Bonus-Off- Opt. 5,639,223 3,205,962
Incentive Bonus-Staff- Opt. 810,355 792,905
Leave Encashment-Off- Opt. 3,880,632 14,872,156
Leave Encashment-Staff- Opt. 318,254 6,359,244
LFA-Opt. 3,033,050 2,723,948
Liveries and Uniform-Off- Opt. 1,945,890 1,899,282
Liveries and Uniform-Staff- Opt. 212,920 197,900
Medical Allowance- Off- Opt 1,750,518 1,472,600
Medical Allowance- Staff-Opt. 300,480 318,000
Staff Overtime Opt. 1,479,626 1,350,017
Washing Allowance-Off- Opt. 175,845 134,678
Washing Allowance-Staff- Opt. 28,517 31,300

119,424,450 113,917,350
Other Support Cost:
Development Cost 24,840 33,120
Charge Allow. - Opt. 61,758 119,460
Company Contri.to Pension Fund - Opt 128,160 244,110
Contribution to PF - Opt 1,891,040 372,308
Employees Tea Expense - Opt 242,390
Entertainment Allowance-Opt. 100,494 61,900
Entertainment-Local-Opt 139,677 28,595
Group Insuranc Prem. Opt. = 180,182
Land & Land Development Tax-Opt. 2,191,141
License & Other Fees-Opt. 361,980 96,026
Lunch Subsidy-Off-Opt 1,099,626 526,690
Lunch Subsidy-Staff-Opt 195,016 229,316
Medical Expenses-Opt 689,515 600,185
Mining Lease Fee-Opt. 2,282,750 2,751,241
Miscellaneous Expenses-Opt. 16,669,463 720,081
Network Service/ Internet 75,375 136,575
Other Honorarium/ Exgratia 4,510,891 4,473,721
Other Transport Hire 118,950 244,078
PF Other - Opt 2,834,725 68,815
POL for Transport-Opt. 47,612 8,050
Postage- Opt 3,238 2,546
Recreation Leave Opt 177,090 88,420
R &M Passenger Vehical-Opt. 1,229,435 938,101
Stationary & Printing - Opt. 179,647 629,322
TA/DA-Officer-Opt 1,214,022 623,452
TA/DA- Staff-Opt 28,411 4,992
Vchicle Tax & License -Opt. 48,014 -
Repair & maintanance cost-Opt. 1,097,806
Newspaper 33,466
Crockeries and cutlery 21,890
Mud Transport 533,891 378,973

37,989,923 13,802,649
157,414,374 127,719,999
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Amountin BDT

2022 2021
32.Administrative and selling expenses

Pay and allowances - Support Personnel:
Basic Salary-Off- Adm 29,345,979 28,903,769
Basic Salary-Staff-Adm 2,248,826 2,547,289
Boishaki Allowance - Adm -Off 700,130 574,085
Boishaki Allowance - Adm -Staff 52,575
Domestic Aid Allowance - Adm 130,633 92,268
Education Subsidy - Adm- Off 376,233 333,400
Education Subsidy - Adm- Staff. 78,232 83,300
Festival Bonus - Adm - Off. 5,764,226 5,554,108
Festival Bonus - Adm - Staff 603,452 579,830
Gas Allowance- Off-Adm 771,198 603,228
Gas Allow - Staff- Adm 128,043 142,075
Gratuity - Adm - Officer 6,483,949 3,351,026
Gratuity - Adm - Staff 986,532 367,928
Health Hazard Allowance - Off-Adm 165 2,640
Health Hazard Allow - Staff -Adm 6,627 19,810
House Rent Allow.-Off-Admin 11,895,286 10,341,670
House Rent Allow.-Staff-Admin 978,907 1,134,946
Incentive Bonus - Adm- Off. 3,389,272 2,821,382
Incentive Bonus - Adm- Staff 773,570 560,574
Leave Encashment - Adm - Off 2,639,977 11,077,398
Leave Encashment - Adm - Staff 331,956 3,321,784
LFA - Adm 3,677,440 3,475,162
Liveries & Uniform - Off Adm 4,402,960 1,940,958
Liveries & Uniform -Staff- Adm 995,920 423,790
Medical Allowance - Off. - Adm 1,196,140 1,016,443
Medical Allowance - Staff. - Adm 189,585 216,167
Overtime- adm 1,820,111 1,737,570
Security Expenses Adm. 27,754,409 32,828,007
Washing Allowance - Adm - Off 117,140 101,552
Washing Allowance - Adm - Staff 18,906 82,410

107,805,804 114,287,144
Repair and Maintenance Cost:
R & M office buildings 4,746,244 2,118,720
R & M residential buildings 48,417 35,688
R & M other building 450,797 682,100
R & M office furniture 25,155 103,337
R & M office equipment 858,754 821,988

6,129,367 3,761,833

Other Support Cost:
Advertisement - Press - Adm 107,750 241,663
Advertisement - Tender (Adm) 1,204,139 928,729
Amortization of Deferred Expenditure 67,147,092 55,046,554
Annual General Meeting Expenses 5,698,692 2,609,332
Bus Hire for Staff - Adm - 4,050
Cable TV Rent 31,300 13,500
Charge Allowance - Adm 41,173 79,640
Company Contr. to Pension Fund - Adm 118,368 208,479
Contr. to PF - Adm 1,244,844 1,414,028
Crockery & Culterise - Adm 155,686 -
CSR 23,502,376 74,520,295
Directors Honorium 1,390,000 970,000
Donation 13,452,000
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Amountin BDT

2022 2021
Employees Tea Expense - Adm -
Entertainment Allowance - Adm 98,390 136,632
Entertainment - Local-Adm 1,286,833 1,256,950
External Audit Fee 276,000 241,500
Group Insurance Prem. - Adm 1,930,610 3,188,608
Internal Coal Use 7,829,250 4,668,445
Internet Service/ Network Service- Adm 1,013,404 188,575
Linen 285,390 -
Legal Expenses Adm. 2,036,295 2,156,375
License & Other Fees - Adm 25,633 3,247,765
Lunc Subsidy - Adm - Off, 733,084 689,496
Lunc Subsidy - Adm - Staff. 129,744 148,904
Medical Expense - Adm 459,531 410,812
Miscellaneous Expenses - Adm 6,988,087 2,407,433
News Paper, Books & Periodical-General 216,357 37,951
Non-Capitalised Equipment and Appliance -
Office Rent Other 345,600 197,850
Office Rent (Petrobangla) 3,289,092 3,300,822
Other Allowance - Adm 1,140 258,904
Other Honorarium - Adm 6,562,400 5,678,814
Petrobangla Service Charge 115,552,000 150,000,000
PF Other Adm. 1,986,850 41,344
POL for Transport - Adm 5,413,466 4,198,101
Postage - Adm 2,444 8,553
Recreation Leave - Adm - Staff 238,680 385,170
R & M Passenger Vehicle - Adm 3,450,986 1,766,706
Stationery & Printing for Office - Adm 542,911 857,691
TA/DA - Officer- Adm 1,628,227 1,075,931
TA/DA Staff- Adm 128,863 137,734
Telephone/ Mab. - Adm. 1,091,674 1,028,412
Training & Education - Foreign - Adm -
Training & Education - Local - Adm 2,186,592 2,081,293
VAT on auction goods 364,387 943,933
Vehicle Insurance- Adm 622,061 759,443
Vehicle registration & License - Adm 857,504 315,610
WASA Bill 29,689 28,272
Depreciation-Adm. 22,803,774 21,347,534
Consultancy Service 3,817,383 -
Electricity Bill Business- Adm 136,446 130,775
Other Adm Expenses 2,347,615 1,824,473
School operating Expenses 7,416,457
Outsourcing Workers Wages- Adm 55,631,157 62,268,958
Wages- Adm 238,590 148,330
Other Office Consumable/ Electric Goods 2,342,485 2,353,691

376,430,500 415,954,060

490,365,671 534,003,037

33.0ther income

This consists of as follows:
Rental income 269,590 71,430
Interest on house building & MCloans 39,988,769 886,920
Other penalties & fine received 400,885 237,715
House rent 5,773,494 5,293,536
Reimbursements of electricity bill 2,828,916 3,198,080
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Amountin BDT

2022 2021
Sales of promotional materials/ Rocks 14,637,854 10,622,152
Sales of sedimented coal 54,522,400 -
Others 1,211,878 1,035,611
119,633,786 21,345,444
34.Finance income
This consists of as follows:
Interest on FDR 651,778,576 707,308,104
Interest on SND 67,331,661 39,328,908
Foreign exchange gain - 19,509,695
719,110,237 766,146,706
35.Finance expense
Interest on SGFL Loan - 1,982,869
Bank charge 3,970,198 3,328,698
Foreign exchange loss 142,635,084 -
146,605,282 5,311,567
36.Contribution to workers’ profit participation fund 76,037,325 133,534,744

This represents statutory contribution by the company as per Bangladesh Labour Act 2006 (amendment in
2013 & 2018). The amount is computed @ 5% of net profit before tax.

37.Related Party Disclosures

During the year the Company carried out a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course
of business on an arm's length basis. Name of those related parties, nature of those transactions and their
total value have been shown in the table below in accordance with IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures”.

Name of Related Parties Relationship Nature of Transactions Tra\lr?sI;Et?:ns : Baacl)aJ::IezaosZc;n
Petrobangla Parent Company Current Account - (47,474,894)
Service Chage (274,448,000) -
Sylhet Gas Field Co.Ltd Exp. Reimbursement 8,733 =
JLMC Project Cost - 4,27,251.84
BAPEX Exp. Reimbursement - 19,115
MGMCL Exp. Reimbursement (2,66,019.70) -
Bakharabad Gas Distribution Co. Ltd Common Ownership Exp. Reimbursement 35,560 -
Jamalgonj Coal Field Project Cost = 56,16,127.00
PGCL Exp. Reimbursement 1,612,678 557,670
Titas Gas T &D Co.Ltd Exp. Reimbursement - 14,330
GTCL Exp. Reimbursement - (16,298)

38.Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The company's primary exposure to credit risk arises through its interest receivables from FDR. At the
reporting date, there was no significant credit risk observed.

Liquidity risk

The company monitors its short-term liquidity risk at operation level. The company has implemented a

monthly rolling forecasting payment plan.

BCMCL
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

The table below analyses the company’s financial liabilities that will be settled on a net basis, into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At 30 June 2022 Less than 1 year 1-2years

Trade and other payables (321,868,850) 687,591,604
Provision for income tax 595,958,413 761,148,045
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices, such as market price of coal, foreign exchange rates and
interest rates will affect the company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

The company faces market price of coal risk and interest maintaining financial instrument for the company is
the FDR account maintained by the company with its banks. Historically, market price and interest rates for such
issues show little fluctuation. Market price risk and interest rate risk for the company is therefore insignificant.

Capital management

The company's objectives are to safeguard the company'’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide benefits to their stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
its shareholders or sell assets to reduce debts.

The company's gearing ratio has been updated and calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Netdebt is
calculated as total borrowings, as shown in the statement of financial position less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown in the statement of financial position, plus net debt.

However, there was no debt outstanding as at 30 June 2022.

Fair value estimation
The carrying values of applicable financial instruments represent their fair values.

39.Concentration of credit risk and major customers

The company markets its coal principally to PDB and others. As of 30 June 2022 and 2021, trade accounts
receivable from BPDB totaled approximately BDT 76,554,346 and BDT 3,171,780,404.00 respectively. Credit
is extended based on an evaluation of the customer's financial condition. Credit losses are provided for in the
financial statements which is historically minimal. The Company is committed under long-term contracts to
supply coal that meets certain quality requirements at specified prices.

40.Claim not acknowledged as debt
There was no claim against the company which is to be acknowledged as debt as at 30 June 2022.

41.Number of employees and top management remuneration

a) The company employed 193 permanent employees, 1 contractual employees and 252 third parties
employees during the year 2021-2022. Each of the employees is being paid BDT 8,250.00 (basic) or

above per annum.

b) Twenty board meetings (321" to 340™) were held in the financial year 2021-2022. Board meeting
attendance fee was BDT 10,000 for per member at per meeting.

42.Capital commitments
There is no capital expenditure commitments as at 30 June 2022.

43.0thers

43.1  Figures relating to the previous year included in this report have been rearranged, wherever considered
necessary, to make them comparable with those of the current year, without causing any impact on the
operational result and value of assets and liabilities as reported in the financial statements.
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Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

43.2  Figures in these notes and in the annexed financial statements have been rounded off to the
nearest BOT.

43.3 These notes form an integral part of the annexed financial statements and accordingly are to be
read in conjunction therewith.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

General Manager (F & A) Company Secretary Director Managing Director

Dhaka, Bangladesh
Date: 02 February 2023
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Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

Evaluation of financial statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
BDT BDT
1. Short term liquidity
1.1 Currentratio
Current assets 8,556,882,795 7,844,451,387
Current liabilities 3,073,131,099 3,471,262,415
2.78 2.26
1.2 Liquid/quick/acid test ratio
Quick assets 8,138,691,562 7,417,886,499
Current liabilities 3,073,131,099 3,471,262,415
2.65 2.14
1.3 Inventory turnover
Cost of goods sold (COGS) 5,211,352,909 5,897,414,555
Average stock 417,903,630 461,437,768
12.47 12.78
1.4 Receivable turnover period (days)
Average receivables 1,624,167,375 3,902,835,881
Net credit sales 5,729,562,015 8,735,750,765
103.47 163.07
1.5 Working capital ratio
Current assets - current liabilities 5,483,751,695 4,373,188,972
Current liabilities 3,073,131,099 3,471,262,415
1.78 1.26
2. Long term solvency
2.1 Debt-equity ratio
Liabilities 4,212,205,228 4,274,391,655
Shareholders' equity 20,630,416,790 19,477,310,062
20% 22%
2.2 Fixed assets to proprietary fund
Fixed assets less depreciation 8,485,247,721 8,910,672,164
Shareholder fund - opening 20,630,416,790 19,477,310,062
41% 46%
2.3 Debt to total assets
Total debts 7,285,336,327 7,745,654,070
Total assets 27,915,753,117 27,222,964,132
26% 28%
3. Profitability
3.1 Gross profit ratio
Gross profit 1,318,973,425 2,422,517,349
Net sales 6,530,326,333 8,319,931,904
20% 29%
3.2 Net profitratio
Net profit 1,168,709,465 2,177,900,309
Net sales 6,530,326,333 8,319,931,904
18% 26%
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Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

Evaluation of financial statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
BDT BDT
3.3 Returnoninvestment
Net profit before interest and taxes 1,444,709,170 2,542,471,717
Capital employed 24,842,622,018 23,751,701,717
6% 11%
3.4 Operatingratio
COGS+ Other operating expenses 4,720,987,238 5,363,411,518
Net sales 6,530,326.333 8,319,931,904
72% 64%
3.5 Total assets turnover
Sales 6,530,326,333 8,319,931,904
Total assets 27,915,753,117 27,222,964,132
23% 31%
3.6 Fixed assets turnover
Sales 6,530,326,333 8,319,931,904
Fixed assets 19,358,870,322 19,378,512,745
34% 43%
3.7 Earnings per share (EPS)
Net profit for the year 1,168,709,465 2,177,900,309
Number of equity shares outstanding 391,630,480 315,630,340
2.98 6.90
3.8 Net Asset Value (NAV)
Net Assets (Total assets-Total Liabilities) 20,630,416,790 19,477,310,062
Number of equity shares outstanding 391,630,480 315,630,340
52.68 61.71
3.9 Divident Payout Ratio (DPR)
Divident Paid - 200,000,000
Net Profit 1,168,709,465 2,177,900,309
- 0.09
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Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited
Achievements In Graphs
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Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited
Achievements In Graphs
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Production Target
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Achievements In Graphs
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Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited
(A Company Of Petrobangla)
Chowhati, Parbatipur, Dinajpur

Salient Features of Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited

| Basic Information

Geological Survey of Bangladesh (GSB) discovered the
Coal Basin in 1985

1)M/S Wardell Armstrong, UK with the assistance of
Overseas Development Administration  (ODA), UK
conducted the Feasibility Study and Submitted report to
Petrobanglain May 1991.

2) Feasibility study for extension of existing underground mining
operation of Barapukuria Coal Mine towards the southern and
the northern side of the basin without interruption of the
present production (15t Revised) in August 2018.

Discovery

Techno Feasibility Study

| Findings of Techno Feasibility Study

Lease Area 1050 hectares
668 hectares (Wardell Armstrong,1991)
803 hectares (John T Boyd, Aug, 2018)
390 Million Tons (Wardell Armstrong,1991)
410 Million Tons (John T Boyd, Aug, 2018)

Coal Basin Area

Coal Reserve

Depth of Coal 118-509 meters
Central Area of the Basin 300 hectares (Wardell Armstrong,1991)
Northern Coal deposit 281 hectares (Wardell Armstrong,1991)

87 hectares (Wardell Armstrong,1991)

Southern Coal deposit
" post 222 hectares (John T Boyd, Aug. 2018)

Nos. of Coal Seam 6
Targeted Seam for production 6t
Average thickness of 6t seam 36m

| The Quality of Barapukuria Coal

Ingredients Quantity in percentage (%)

Ash 12.4

Volatile Material 29.2

Fixed Carbon 48.4

Total Sulphur 0.53

Gross Calorific Value 25.68 M)/Kg or 11,040 Btu/Ib or 6,072 kcal/kg
Assumed Moisture 10

Inherent Moisture 3.39

In accordance with USA Ranking System (ASTM Method)
Barapukuria Coal is High Volatile Bituminous Coal. So, this is an
industrial standard coal. It can be used for power generation and
domestic purposes.

Rank of Barapukuria Coal

BCMCL
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Salient Features

Coal Characteristics:

The mineable coal of Barapukuria coal mine is mainly
homogeneous dull coal intersected with bands of semi dull coal
and semi bright coal. Most of the coal is weakly coking coal,
some sections are long flame coal.

Title of the Development Project

Barapukuria Coal Mine Development Project (BCMP)

Project Concept Paper (PCP)

PCP approved by ECNEC on 11 March 1992, Amounting USS
254.453 million (Tk.= 91,603 Lac, 1USS= Tk. 36.00)

Project Proforma (PP)

PP approved by ECNEC on 21 Apr 1993, Amounting USS 227.52
million (TK.= 88,735.55 Lac, 1USS= Tk. 39.00) including FC=USS
124.84million & LC= USS$ 102.68 million

Revised Project Proforma (PP)
(1%t Revision)

Revised PP approved by ECNEC on 15 Aug 2002, Amounting USS
251.08 million (TK.=143,112.66 Lac, 1USS= Tk. 57.00) including

Construction Stage of the Mine

FC=USS 127.49 million & LC= US$ 123.59 million

Construction Contract

Construction Contract BCMP-77 was signed between
Petrobangla & China National Machinery Import and Export
Corporation (CMC) on 7 Feb 1994, (Turn Key Contract)

Contract Price

USS 194.91 million including Supplier's Credit USS 109.237
million & ADP fund of GOB USS 85.675 million (FC=USS 124.84
million & LC=USS 70.07 million)

Rate of Interest on Supplier’s Credit 5%

Repayment Period 8 years excluding 6 years grace period
Contract Effective Date 1June 1994

Physical Work Commenced 1June 1996

Water Inrush happened 5 April 1998

Mine Redesign Activity

Mine Redesign Approved on 23 July 2000

Development work recommenced on

October-2000

1st Amendment of the Contract

19 October 2002

2"" Amendment of the Contract

23 March 2005

Acceptance Test Run of Longwall
and Development System

Acceptance Test Run of four Roadheader system and two
longwall face (1101 & 1110), out of 15 designed longwall face
was completed in 29 May 2005

Construction work substantially

completed on 30 June 2005
Conditional Taking Over Certificate

Issued On 6 September 2005
Side Letter Agreement signed on 12 September 2007

Amount of new Bank Guarantee for
Side Letter Agreement

Original Bank Guarantee realized on 30 October 2007 amounting
(FC=USS$12.484 million and LC=TK350.087 million) & New
Bank Guarantee issued on 30 September 2007 amounting
(FC=US$3.375435 million and LC=Tk. 130.724985 million)

Final Taking Over Certificate

Final Taking Over Certificate (TOC) issued on 29 Mar 2009
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Repayment Completed upto June -
2012 (16 out of 17 installment) US5 125.24 million

Final (17*") repayment installment
paid on19 Sep 2012

Total repaid amount USS$ 131.98 million

USS 6.74 million

Details of the Company and its formation
Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited (BCMCL)

Name of the Company Chowhati, Parbatipur, Dinajpur
Certificate of Incorporation 4 August 1998
Commencement of Business 8 December 1998

Business Identification Number (BIN)  000091322-1006

TIN Certificate 1642-6678-6348

Authorized Capital of the Company Tk 700.00 Crore

Paid up Capital of the Company Tk 391.63 Crore

No of Shares 39,16,30,480.00

Management, Production & Maintenance (M&P) Contract-BCMCL/01/31 (15t Contract)

Management, Production & M&P Contract signed in between BCMCL and CMC-XMC
Maintenance (M&P) Contract Consortium on 04 Jun 2005

US$82.30 M (FC=USS$55,551,766.86, LC=Tk.1,572,729,200.00)
forproduction of 4.75millionton of coal overaperiod of 71 months

USS 17.326 (USS 11.695 + TK 331.10) for per metric ton
Coal Production

Contract Price

Production Service Cost

Mining Method Fully mechanized underground longwall mining method
Commercial Production Commencedon 10 September 2005 from 1110 longwall face

Management, Production, Maintenance &Provisioning Services (MPM&P) Contract:
BCMCL/06/134/2011 (2"Contract)

Management, Production,
Maintenance & Provisioning

M&P Contract signed in between BCMCL and XMC-CMC

Services Contract (MPM&P) Consortium on 10 Dec 2011
Effective date of the Contract 11 August 2011
Duration of the Contract 72 months (up to Aug 2017)

FC: US$ 200,976,340.45 and LC: TK 7,670,309,184.66,

Total Contract Price Cost/ton: USS 56.17

107



Salient Features

Management, Production, Maintenance & Provisioning Services (MPM&P) Contract:
BCMCL/640/134/2017 (3“Contract)

Management' Production' Maintenance MPM&P-2017 Draft Contract initiated in between BCMCL and
and Provisioning Services for Productionof ~ XMC-CMC Consortium

3.205 Million tons of coal with a period of ~ MPM&P-2017 Contract signed in between BCMCL and XMC-CMC

four years from Barapukuria Coal Mine Consortium on 8 July 2017
Effective date of the Contract 11% August 2017
Duration of the Contract 48 months (up to 10™"August 2021)

FC: USS 182,432,581.63 and LC: TK 6,131,431,373.80,

Total Contract Price Cost/ton: US$ 81.00

Construction of Underground Roadways, Coal Extraction, Operation, maintenance and
Other Associated Works of Barapukuria Coal Mine, Barapuluria, Dinajpur Bangladesh
(CEOMAW-2021) Contract: Contract No. BCMCL/CEOMAW-2021. (4t Contract)

Construction of Underground Roadways,

Coal Extruction, Operation, maintenance

and Other Associated Works of BCMCL/CEOMAW-2021 Contract signed in between BCMCL and
Barapukuria Coal Mine, Barapuluria, = XMC-CMC Consortium on 30 December 2021

Dinajpur Bangladesh (CEOMAW-2021)

Contract.
Production Target Not less than 4,500,000 Metric tons
Duration of the Contract 72 months

FC: USS 262,566,887.89 and LC: TK 10,494,878,082.13,

Total Contract Price Cost/ton: USS 85.85

International Consultancy Services for Barapukuria Coal Mining Company Limited |

International Consultancy Services for Supervision, Monitoring
and Assistance to BCMCL for Implementing the Contract NO:
Name of the Contract BCMCL/CEOMAW-2021 with the XMC-CMC Consortium and also
Providing Technical Assistance in Exploration, Development and
Mining Operation of Coal/Other Mining Fields under BCMCL.

Contract No BCMCL/Consulting firm/630/2022
Effective date 15t November 2022.

Completion Date 14t May 2028.

Duration 66 (Sixty six) months, 5.5 Years.

Financial Year Wise Coal Extraction Record (Ton)

2005-2006 303,016 2014-2015 675,775
2006-2007 388,376 2015-2016 1,021,638
2007-2008 677,097 2016-2017 1,160,657
2008-2009 827,845 2017-2018 923,276
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2009-2010 704,568 2018-2019 805,696
2010-2011 666,635 2019-2020 811,137
2011-2012 835,000 2020-2021 753,973
2012-2013 854,803 2021-2022 488,676
2013-2014 947,124

Total Production up to 30 June 2022.

130.23 Lac ton (including 0.91 Lac.ton of construction coal)

| Coal Extraction from slices

Extraction from first slice

41.67 Lac ton

Extraction from 2" slice

58.52 Lac ton

Extraction from 3" slice

30.08 Lac ton, Till June'22

Financial Year Wise Coal Sale/Delivery to PDB (Ton)

2005-2006 209,234.57 2014-2015 522,129
2006-2007 460,231.11 2015-2016 485,569
2007-2008 491,354.17 2016-2017 540,577
2008-2009 532,487.62 2017-2018 787,103
2009-2010 501,132.15 2018-2019 828,737
2010-2011 463,923.17 2019-2020 807,181
2011-2012 499,971.76 2020-2021 753,363
2012-2013 643,977.94 2021-2022 487,926
2013-2014 524,143
Upto 30 June 2022, total coal delivery to PDB= 9,539,041ton.
| Coal Price to PDB including VAT (USD/ton)
Up to June 2008 61.50
July 2008 to June 2010 71.50
July 2010 to January 2012 85.50
February 2012 to April 2015 106.5
May 2015 to December 2021 136.5
January 2022 to onwards 184.80
| Financial Year Wise Coal Sale to Local buyers (Ton)

UP to June 2004 70,131.35 2013-2014 338,618.00
2004-2005 74,767.77 2014-2015 313,405.00
2005-2006 45,020.44 2015-2016 430,517.00
2006-2007 5,707.35 2016-2017 451,512.00

BCMCL

109



Salient Features

I
2007-2008 10,392.73 2017-2018 273,287.00
2008-2009 258,080.94 2018-2019 20.00
2009-2010 319,254.71 2019-2020 20.00
2010-2011 107,795.09 2020-2021 10.00
2011-2012 332,526.00 2021-2022 0.00
2012-2013 288,266.00

From 19 March 2018 coal sale to the local buyers have been ceased.

| Manpower

Permanent Officers-163, Permanent Staff-26, Contractual
Basis-1, Out Sourcing- 250.

Chinese: Registered- 211& Local workers: Registered- 1043.

Manpower: BCMCL Head

Manpower: MPM&P Contractor

Total Payment to Government Exchequer
Payment to Government Exchequer on2021-2022 Tk.233.76 Crore

Total Payment to Government Exchequer upto
2021-2022

Tk. 3,552.11 Crore

Subsidence History

First subsidence noticed on 11 May 2006 in Kalupara and
Balarampur village. In the same area second subsidence noticed
on 7 May 2008 (1101 & 1103 face area).

Moupukur village Subsidence noticed on 14 November 2008
Jigagarivillage Subsidence noticed on 29 April 2009
Number of affected village and Mouza: 8

627.73 acre including Private land 618.41 acre, Govt. Khas land
4.67 and grave-yard, mosque 4.65 acre

New Affected area 45.23 acre
Total acquired land 807.34 acre
Population and family in affected area 3684 and 592

Kalupara and Balarampur village

Affected area:

Business Enterprise 239 nos
Landless poor/Vulnerable/Marginal
family 295 nos
| Future Plan
Coal Field Feasibility Study Project:
1)  Techno-Economicfeasibility study for OpenPitCoalMineinthe Northern 3Years
and the Southern Part of Barapukuria Coal Basin, Parbatipur, Dinajpur
2) Techno-Economic feasibility study for Khalashpir Coal Field, Khalashpir, 4 Years

Pirgonj, Rangpur.
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Coal Field Development Project:
1) Development of Dighipara Coal Field at Dighipara, Dinajpur 8 Years

2)  Development of Open Pit Coal Mine in the Northern and Southern Part
of Barapukuria Basin, Parbatipur, Dinajpur

3)  Development of the Extended existing Underground Mining Operation
of Barapukuria Coal Mine towards the Southern side of the Basin, 3.5 Years
Parbatipur, Dinajpur

4)  Development of Khalashpir Coal Field, Khalashpir, Pirgonj, Rangpur 6 Years

8 Years

Preliminary Study of Alihat Iron Ore

Alihat Iron Ore field location Upazila: Hakimpur, Dist: Dinajpur

Discovered by Geological Survey of Bangladesh (GSB) in 2013
Findings-
Field area :5sq.km

GSB drilled four geological boreholes in thisarea  Depthrange :408-632m

from 2013 to 2020 Cumulative thickness :68m
Percentage :more than 50
Geological reserve : 625 million ton

A contract signed between BCMCL and
DMT Consulting Limited to perform the 25%]uly 2022
prefeasibility study.

"Preliminary Study for development of Alihat Iron Ore
deposit at Hakimpur, Dinajpur, Bangladesh”

Effected date 10t August 2022

Project entitled

| Floating Solar Power Plan at Subsidence Area

Due to underground mining method of coal extraction at Barapukuria Coal Mine, the land of mine area is
subsidized and 2 lakes are formed

Lake area and depth (North side) 109 acres and 9.50m
Lake area and depth (South side) 95 acres and 6.00m
A feasibility study has been conducted by SREDA in collaboration with ADB in March 2021

Possible capacity of power generation as

feasibility study report 45.965Mw

BCMCL
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